Cabinet
Meeting: Wednesday, 17th June 2020 at 6.00 pm
Virtual Meeting (a viewing link will be published on the council’s website
at least 24 hours prior to the meeting)
Membership:

Contact:

Cllrs. Cook (Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Environment) (Chair), H. Norman (Deputy Leader of the Council and
Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources), Gravells (Cabinet
Member for Planning and Housing Strategy), Melvin (Cabinet Member
for Economic Recovery and Growth), Morgan (Cabinet Member for
Culture and Leisure) and Watkins (Cabinet Member for Communities
and Neighbourhoods)
Democratic and Electoral Services
01452 396126
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk

AGENDA
VIEWING ARRANGEMENTS FOR REMOTE MEETINGS
View the meeting here: https://bit.ly/3h7YgBG
The meeting is being broadcast live using Microsoft Teams. We recommend that you install
the Microsoft Teams app on your device for the best viewing experience. If viewing via a web
browser, please note that this is not possible if using Safari; instead please download the
Microsoft Teams app or the Microsoft Edge browser.
Further advice on accessing meetings through Teams, is available here:
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/Attend-a-live-event-in-Teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479b750-c86c9bc98d84

1.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or nonpecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please
see Agenda Notes.

3.

MINUTES (Pages 7 - 10)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20th May 2020.

1

4.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
The opportunity is given to members of the public to put questions to Cabinet Members or
Committee Chairs provided that a question does not relate to:



Matters which are the subject of current or pending legal proceedings, or
Matters relating to employees or former employees of the Council or comments in respect
of individual Council Officers

If you would like to ask a question at this meeting, please contact
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk as soon as possible and by 12th June at the latest.

5.

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)
To receive any petitions or deputations provided that no such petition or deputation is in
relation to:



Matters relating to individual Council Officers, or
Matters relating to current or pending legal proceedings

If you would like to present a deputation or petition at this meeting, please contact
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk as soon as possible and by 12th June at the latest.

6.

LEADER AND CABINET MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
Any Member of the Council may ask the Leader of the Council or any Cabinet Member any
question without prior notice, upon:




Any matter relating to the Council’s administration
Any matter relating to any report of the Cabinet appearing on the summons
A matter coming within their portfolio of responsibilities

Only one supplementary question is allowed per question.
If you would like to ask a question at this meeting, please contact
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk as soon as possible and by 12th June at the latest.

7.

CITY CENTRE COMMISSION (Pages 11 - 16)
To consider the report of the Leader of the Council seeking approval to establish a City
Centre Commission for Gloucester.

8.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING QUARTER 4 2019/20 (Pages 17 - 34)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources informing
Members of the Council’s performance against key measures in Quarter 4 of 2019/20.

9.

FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2019/20 (Pages 35 - 48)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources informing
Members of the final Council position against agreed budgets for the 2019/20 financial year
and seeking them to note the final outturn position and approve movement to and from
earmarked revenue reserves.

2

10.

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UPDATE (Pages 49 - 66)
To consider the report of the Head of Audit Risk Assurance presenting the Strategic Risk
Register (SRR) as at 25th February 2020 to Members for their awareness.

11.

WASTE, STREETSCENE AND GROUNDS MAINTENANCE SERVICES OPTIONS
REPORT (Pages 67 - 116)
To consider the report of the Leader of the Council providing an assessment of the options
available to the Council as a consequence of the current contract for the delivery of Waste,
Streetscene and Grounds Maintenance Services coming to an end in March 2022 and
seeking to recommend the next steps.
Please note that Appendix 2 is exempt from disclosure to the press and public by
virtue of Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
including the authority holding that information). If Members wish to discuss Appendix
2 the Cabinet will need to resolve to exclude the press and public before doing so.

12.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
To resolve:
that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the following item of business
on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of business to be transacted or the nature
of the proceedings, that if members of the press and public are present during consideration
of this item there will be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended.
Agenda Item No. Description of Exempt Information
13
Paragraph 3: Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information).

13.

KINGS QUARTER DELIVERY PROPOSAL (Pages 117 - 144)
To consider the report of the Leader of the Council providing Members with an update on the
Kings Quarter development.

Jon McGinty
Managing Director
Date of Publication: Tuesday, 9 June 2020

3

NOTES
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.
Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows –
Interest

Prescribed description

Employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest)
and the Council
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are
to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area.
For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the
land or to receive income.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the
Council’s area for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) –
(a) the landlord is the Council; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner
or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has
a beneficial interest

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where –
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land
in the Council’s area and
(b) either –
i. The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that
body; or
ii. If the share capital of that body is of more than one class,
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with

4

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.
For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or
civil partner where you are aware of their interest.
Access to Information
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website:
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting
date.
For enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk.
If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this information, or if
you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information please call 01452 396396.
Recording of meetings
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy,
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors,
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in
advance of the meeting.
FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings;
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the
assembly point in the car park and await further instructions;
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is
safe to do so.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

CABINET
MEETING

:

Wednesday, 20th May 2020

PRESENT

:

Cllrs. Cook (Chair), H. Norman, Gravells, Melvin, Morgan and
Watkins
Others in Attendance
Cllrs Haigh, Hilton, Stephens and Wilson
Managing Director
Corporate Director
Corporate Director
Head of Place
Head of Communities
Head of Policy and Resources
Head of Cultural Services
Policy and Development Officer
Housing Services Operational Lead
Solicitor
Policy and Governance Manager
Democratic Services and Elections Team Leader
Democratic Services and Elections Officer

APOLOGIES

131.

:

None

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

132.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 11th March 2020 are confirmed
as a correct record and be signed by the Chair in due course.

133.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
There were no public questions.

134.

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)
There were no petitions or deputations.
Page
17

CABINET
20.05.20
135.

LEADER AND CABINET MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
Councillor Stephens referred to the more than 180 households in temporary
accommodation across the Gloucestershire authorities, mostly in emergency hotel
accommodation, 84 placed by the City Council. He sought reassurance that people
would not be returned to the street after COVID-19 lockdown and that every effort
was being made to re-home them not on a bed and breakfast basis or outside the
city boundary. The Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods
confirmed that this was the case and that the authority intended to work closely with
partners and every household, not just those in priority need, on transition plans
and to find a home. She reminded Members of the commitment towards finding a
permanent solution given in the Housing and Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy 2020-25 (Cabinet 12 February 2020) developed prior to the COVID-19
outbreak. The Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods further
stated that everything would be done by the City Council and County Council
colleagues to assist people who had usually or were likely to sleep rough.
Concerning the new Cabinet portfolio for Economic Recovery, Councillor Stephens
sought clarification on how it would be progressed and whether there would be a
commitment to political consensus and working with all sectors of the economy,
including worker representatives, given its importance. The Cabinet Member for
Economic Recovery replied that she had spent a very short time in post so far
listening to businesses but did not rule out working with any sector of the economy.
She emphasised that returning Gloucester to economic prosperity was an apolitical
task and invited Councillor Stephens to discuss the matter further at a later date.
Regarding COVID-19 guidance Councillor Haigh asked what the city was doing to
support social distancing for pedestrians and cyclists, in the context of recent
proposals by the County Council with that objective, and to identify areas where
such measures could be taken. The Cabinet Member for Environment gave
examples of a range of proposals being considered for parts of the city centre
including broadening pedestrianized zones, restricting non-essential traffic and
removing on-street parking spaces. He advised that these were only informal
proposals at this early stage and that he expected progress to be made shortly.
Councillor Haigh enquired how food parcels are to be supplied since the Food
Consortium had closed and the County Help Hub continued to make referrals from
people in need. The Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods stated
that a document had just been sent to everyone involved in making referrals,
including elected members, listing the various options still open to people requiring
food assistance. She commented on the importance of all parties working together
to address support for families in the longer term beyond the COVID-19 pandemic.
Councillor Hilton informed Members of concerns he had received from residents in
his own and other wards over the growing number of family homes being converted
into houses in multiple occupation (HMOs) mostly but not exclusively for students.
He asked why this was not addressed in the proposed Council Plan Extension Plan
(agenda item 7) with consideration of an `Article 4 Declaration’ to control
development as had been successfully employed in the St. Paul’s area of
Cheltenham. The Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Strategy reminded
Members that the matter had been discussed at Cabinet, Council and Planning
Page 28

CABINET
20.05.20
Policy Framework meetings and of the fine balance to be struck between the need
for student accommodation and rentable family homes. He advised that he would
be pleased to meet with Councillor Hilton and any other interested parties to
consider the issue further.
The Cabinet Member for Communities and
Neighbourhoods drew attention to the discussion of HMOs and student
accommodation in the context of the Housing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy 2020-25 by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (3 February 2020) and
the commitment given to investigate the matter in the housing stock condition
survey and consider what action to take.
Regarding the inclusion of consideration of a bid for UK City of Culture 2025 in the
Council Plan Extension (agenda item 7 Appendix 2 No.4) Councillor Hilton enquired
whether effort was being put into the bid that would have been better spent on city’s
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. The Cabinet Member for Culture and
Leisure reassured Members that the bid had not been actively worked on since
January 2020. He indicated that the Gloucester Culture Trust had been invited to
make representations and join discussions on the appetite in the city for a bid and
commented that culture could become a major driver of recovery. Councillor Hilton
agreed on the importance of developing the cultural offer in Gloucester but sought
further clarification on whether the bid was the right means to do it especially as it
had an estimated cost of £500,000 at a time when the Council was expected to
have a funding deficit. The Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure replied that it
was important to keep options open and that the cost would be mostly borne by
partners rather than the Council. He commented that he did not recognise the
figure given by Councillor Hilton.
Councillor Wilson sought an update on progress made by the administrator of
Marketing Gloucester Limited (MGL) and in particular whether the full details of how
the £400,000 grant from the Gloucestershire First Local Enterprise Partnership
(GFirstLEP) had been spent were known. The Cabinet Member for Performance
and Resources stated that the administrator’s report that would enable an
understanding of the GFirstLEP investment had not yet been made available.
Councillor Wilson further asked if the options document prepared by the MGL
Interim Chief Executive was available. The Cabinet Member for Performance and
Resources responded that this document had been received by the Cabinet
Member for Culture and Leisure and the Senior Management Team but had not yet
been reviewed by other Cabinet Members prior to wider circulation.
136.

COUNCIL PLAN EXTENSION – PRIORITIES AND ACTIONS FOR 2020/21
Cabinet considered the report of the Leader of the Council that sought a
recommendation for Council to approve the proposed actions and priorities that
were set out for the one year Council Plan extension in 2020-2021.
The Leader of the Council introduced the report as an opportunity to complete more
actions from the 2017-20 plan and develop others in addition. He summarised the
proposals for each priority and highlighted the most significant activities. In relation
to the priority identified to reduce homelessness (Appendix 1 3.10), the Cabinet
Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods commented on the importance of
taking forward what had been learnt from the COVID-19 response. In particular she
highlighted the role of the Council beyond its statutory duties influencing and
Page 9 3

CABINET
20.05.20
working with partners and all parties to find solutions to benefit communities. The
Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Strategy reiterated that working with
others was essential. He drew Members’ attention to the Housing Homelessness
and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-25 developed through collaboration with the
Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods, providers and partners and
advised them that he was exploring a range of activities and innovations to achieve
its aims. The Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure looked forward to
progressing the cultural elements of the proposed extension. He commented on
the vital contribution various organisations across the sector have made and will
make to help people recover from the COVID-19 lockdown with mental and physical
stimulation. The Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure paid special tribute to the
activities of the Gloucester Culture Trust in engaging people and reaching out to
communities during the pandemic.
RECOMMENDED to Council that the one year extension to the Council Plan and
the priorities and actions outlined in Appendix 1 of the report be approved.

Time of commencement: 6.00 pm
Time of conclusion: 6.45 pm
Chair

Page 10
4

Agenda Item 7

Meeting:

Cabinet

Subject:

City Centre Commission

Report Of:

Leader of the Council

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Ian Edwards, Head of Place
Email: ian.edwards@gloucester.gov.uk
None

Appendices:

Date:

17 June 2020

Budget/Policy Framework: No
Tel: 01452 396034

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this Report is to seek approval to the establishment of a City Centre
Commission for Gloucester;

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

The Council invites the Dean of Gloucester, the Very Reverend Stephen Lake,
to establish a City Centre Commission for the purpose of developing and
overseeing the delivery of a 10 Year Vision for the City Centre

(2)

The Regeneration Advisory Board be replaced by City Centre Commission

(3)

A budget of £10,000 be made available from the Regeneration Reserve to
support the administration of the Commission during 2020/21

(4)

Cabinet receives an annual progress report on the City Centre Commission and,
subject to satisfactory progress, consider a further annual grant of up to £10,000
to support the work of the Commission

3.0

Background

3.1

In March 2013, the City Council established the Regeneration Advisory Board (RAB)
The role of the RAB being to:
(i)

advise the Council, both Members and officers on matters relating to the
regeneration of the City

(ii)

comment on whether regeneration proposals are consistent with the vision for
the City, and to contribute to the evolution of that vision

(iii)

to act as a forum for consultation on regeneration related matters

Page 11

Page | 1

3.2

(iv)

to reflect the views of residents and other stakeholders in relation to
regeneration related matters

(v)

to consider and suggest options and help obtain resources for the regeneration
of the City

(vi)

to monitor progress of the City’s regeneration.

(vii)

to invite and receive presentations from developers.

The RAB has also had a significant role in the formation and implementation of the
Economic Development
and
Regeneration
Strategy 2016
–
2021
(https://www.gloucester.gov.uk/media/1378/regeneration_economic_development_s
trategy_2016_2021.pdf). This has resulted in many significant successes including:
(i)

The redevelopment of Bakers Quay

(ii)

New student accommodation at Blackfriars

(iii)

Planning permission granted for the redevelopment of Kings Quarter

(iv)

A new, award winning Transport Hub

3.3

Since 2013, it has continued to meet bi-monthly and maintain regular engagement
with members from all parties, developers, business organisations and individual
businesses under the constant and valued leadership of Stephen Lake.

3.4

For the past 12 months, the RAB has reflected on its future role and is of the view
that in its current guise, it has probably run its course. Perhaps a more broad ranging
partnership with a different focus is required to support the City Centre in particular in
achieving the Vision established in our 2019 Future High Streets proposal. Namely:
“By 2025, our city centre will be transformed from one based on a traditional retail
offer serving a relatively local population to one that is repopulated with residents,
workers and visitors enjoying a variety of experiences throughout the day and night,
building on the city’s rich heritage and the diversity of its culture. It will be the place
the city comes together to access services and participate in civic and community
activities and events. Gloucester city centre will be a place where innovation and
heritage go hand in hand and is accessible, inclusive and welcoming for all.”

3.5

A Vision that is all the more relevant in the current climate.

4.0

A City Centre Commission for Gloucester

4.1

In
the
second
of
his
reviews
of
the
high
street
(http://www.vanishinghighstreet.com/wpcontent/uploads/2018/07/GrimseyReview2.pdf) Bill Grimsey, the former Chief
Executive of a number of national retailers, identified 25 recommendations for that a
city centre should consider. Prime amongst these was the establishment of a
Commission to undertake a high profile review of the future of its local centres. Each
Commission to be drawn from local stakeholders and experienced practitioners and
collect evidence from a variety of sources to support the development of a long term
strategy and delivery plan, referred to in the Review as a 20 year Business Plan.

4.2

We have a vision, but the world has changed even more since Covid-19. We can’t go
back. We need a small group who represent the different constituents and
stakeholders of the City, plus some radical thinkers and thought leaders who can
design a roadmap that is innovative and radical yet grounded in reality; and who have

Page 12

Page | 2

the confidence of stakeholders whilst being sufficiently independent to challenge the
status quo.
4.3

The City Centre Commission would replace the RAB and membership would be by
invitation only and restricted to a relatively small group of individuals and
organisations that share a common purpose.

4.4

The proposal is to invite the Very Reverend Stephen Lake, Dean of Gloucester to
lead the Commission. During his time leading the RAB, the Dean has consistently
demonstrated independence and is widely respected by all sectors.

4.5

The Dean is to be invited, in consultation with the Head of Place and Leader, to
establish the formal terms of reference as well as identifying membership. Its initial
work being to use the Vision identified at 3.4 as a guiding principle to develop a 10
Year Business Plan for the City Centre

5.0

Social Value Considerations

5.1

The work of the Commission will be guided by the recently adopted Social Value
Policy for the City Council. This will be augmented by the social value ambitions of
all those organisations that have a stake in the success of the city centre.

6.0

Alternative Options Considered

6.1

Alternative options have been considered as follows:
(i)

Retain the RAB – this has been dismissed as it was universally felt that the
RAB had successfully served its purpose and it was time to refocus activity on
the future direction of the city rather than the delivery of an existing
regeneration strategy which expires in March 2021

(ii)

Utilise existing partnership to perform the function of the Commission – the
two State of the City events revealed an ambition for a single group to draw
together the interests in the City to support the delivery of such an holistic
vision. The absence of such a group would be addressed by adopting the
Commission model

6.2

It should be noted that the current Covid-19 situation has resulted in the formation of
a number of new groups to address the economic, social and environmental recovery
of the City and County. It is not intended for the Commission to play any role in the
short term recovery of the City. However, it is acknowledged that there is likely to be
an overlap of individuals and organisations represented in both activities.

6.3

Equally, the Commission is not intended to have any implied
management/supervisory responsibility for any other organisation or partnership in
the City. The relationship will be defined by the Commission holding to account any
partner responsible for the delivery of any specific action in the Business Plan.

7.0

Reasons for Recommendations

7.1

To develop a radically different way of working and working with partners to realise
the vision in 3.4. A time bound Commission will be able to design a business plan
working with key organisations and individuals in the City but also providing challenge
and transformation.

Page 13

Page | 3

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

A request is being made for a £10,000 contribution to the administration costs of the
Commission for 2020/21. This budget will not be used to cover the time of Council
officers engaged with the Commission but to allow the staff of the Dean of Gloucester
to actively support the work of the Commission.

8.2

Such costs can be met from the Regeneration Reserve for 2020/21.

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

The City Centre Commission will be not be part of the City Council but a separate
body with no decision- making powers or status within the constitution.

9.2

The £10,000 referred to in this report will be a grant payment by the City Council, the
terms of which should be set out in writing.

10.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

10.1

The main risks arising from this Report relate to:
(i)

the inability of the Dean of Gloucester in collaboration with the Leader and
Head of Place to define a clear Terms of Reference for the Commission

(ii)

the inability of the Dean of Gloucester in collaboration with the Leader and
Head of Place to attract suitably qualified members to the Commission

(iii)

overlap of purpose with other existing partnerships in the City

(iv)

failure of the Commission to agree a 10 Year Business Plan for the City Centre

(v)

loss of focus and credibility of the Commission given the long term nature of
the role

10.2

It is suggested that these risks are initially mitigated by the experience of the Dean of
Gloucester in leading the RAB and the evident desire of partner organisations to
engage in such activity.

10.3

It is proposed that Cabinet receive a progress report six months after the first meeting
of the Commission and annually thereafter.

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA)

11.1

The actions proposed in this Report will benefit residents and businesses through the
co-ordinated repurposing of the City Centre.

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1 The Commission will consider all aspects of community safety including the principles
of designing out crime.
Sustainability
12.2 The Business Plan developed by the Commission will consider sustainability in the
context of the re-purposing of our City Centre.
Page 14

Page | 4

Staffing and Trade Union
12.3 None
Background Documents:
Report to Council 21st March 2013

Page 15

Page | 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Meeting:

Cabinet
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date:

17 June 2020
6 July 2020

Subject:

Performance Monitoring Quarter 4 – 2019/20

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jay Bishop, Performance and Improvement Officer

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jay.bishop@gloucester.gov.uk

No
Tel: 39-6129

Appendices:
1. Performance Report Quarter 4 – 2019/20
FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the Council’s performance
against key measures in Quarter 4 of 2019/20.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the information contained in
the report and make any recommendations to the Cabinet.

2.2

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

the Quarter 4 Performance Report 2019/20 at Appendix 1 be noted.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

This report sets out the Council’s performance against a set of 18 key indicators in
the fourth quarter of 2019/20. Corporate KPIs where data is collected annually have
been excluded from this report and will be reported in the End Of Year Performance
Report only.

3.2

Appendix 1 sets out the performance data, including comparative information from
2018/19 where available.

3.3

Where targets exist, these have been included along with a narrative to explain the
data. A red (alert) threshold is included in some charts. Where performance is
monitored as part of a contract, targets and red thresholds are set and revised as
part of that process, where this is not the case and there is also no national target
available, these have been determined during the service planning process in
consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member.
Page 17

3.4

The summary of KPIs is categorised by Short Term Trend. 9 measures have
improved in the short term. Of the 6 measures that have worsened in the short
term, 3 are red. Overall there are 7 measures at green, 5 at amber and 6 at red.

3.5

The recent outbreak, and situation, of Covid-19 has caused delays to some of the
available data for the Q4 Performance Report. The report has been produced with
that latest information possible to obtain. As new information is accessible the
report will be updated accordingly.

3.6

This report has been produced to focus on the Q4 results, a separate report will be
produced for the end of year results when accessibility to data has improved.

4.0

Social Value Considerations

4.1

There are no ABCD/Social Value implications in respect of the recommendations in
this report.

5.0

Environmental Implications

5.1

There are no Environmental Implications in respect of the recommendations in this
report.

6.0

Alternative Options Considered

6.1

There are no alternative options.

7.0

Reasons for Recommendations

7.1

The Council is committed to embedding a culture of Performance Management
across the organisation and this report provides Members with an overview of
corporate performance during the fourth quarter of 2019/20.

8.0

Future Work and Conclusions

8.1

As explained in paragraph 3.3, the development of the framework is an ongoing
process.

9.0

Financial Implications

9.1

There are no financial implications resulting from the recommendations in this
report.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

10.0

Legal Implications

10.1

There are no legal implications resulting from the recommendations in this report.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

Page 18

11.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
11.1

The PMS provides the opportunity to embed risk management within the
performance framework by linking actions and PIs to risks, as well as having
standalone risks. Service risk registers are being updated and will be added to the
system alongside the 2020-21 service planning process.

12.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA) and Safeguarding:

12.1

This performance report is for information only, therefore a PIA is not required and
there are no safeguarding matters to consider.

12.2

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

13.0

Community Safety Implications

13.1

There are no community implications resulting from the recommendations in the
report.

14.0

Staffing & Trade Union Implications

14.1

There are no staffing and
recommendations in the report.

Background Documents:

trade

union

None

Page 19

implications resulting from

the

This page is intentionally left blank

Q4 19/20 Gloucester City Council Quarterly
Performance Report
This report sets out the Council's performance against a set of key
performance indicators.

PI Status

Long Term Trends

Short Term Trends

Alert

Improving

Improving

Warning

No Change

No Change

OK

Getting Worse

Getting Worse

Unknown
Data Only

Short Term Trend – At a Glance

Short Term Trend – Improving
PI Code

Measure

Status

CGD1

Number of affordable homes delivered, including: affordable rent; social
rent; rent to homebuy; shared ownership; Low Cost Home Ownership
discount. Data presented is cumulative across each year.

CGD6

Percentage of minor applications where decisions were made within the
agreed timescale or agreed extended period.

CIE3

Percentage of total waste recycled

H23

Average number of Households in Temporary Accommodation

H24

Average number of households in B & B

H9

Number of families with children in B&B accommodation beyond 6 weeks

HR1

Staff Turnover

PG8

Percentage of information governance responses (FOI/EIR,DPA,SAR)
compliant with statutory deadlines

VE2

Museum of Gloucester Footfall

Page
1 21

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Short Term Trend - No Change
PI Code

Measure

CGD5

Percentage of major applications where decisions were made within the
agreed timescale or agreed extended period.

CIE21

Number of active groups involved in open space management

CST1

Average wait time for customers to be seen (Face to Face)

Status

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Status

Short
Term
Trend

Long
Term
Trend

Short Term Trend - Declining
PI Code

Measure

CGD14

Percentage of affordable housing built to Category 2 building regulations
standards

CGD15

Percentage of affordable housing built to Category 3 building regulations
standards

CIE4

Percentage of domestic waste collected on time

COMM3

Percentage of Positive Media Coverage

CST8

Percentage of complaints that escalate to stage 2

HR4

Absence Rate

Page
2 22

CGD1

Number of affordable homes delivered, including affordable rent; social rent; rent to homebuy;
shared ownership; Low Cost Home Ownership discount. Data presented is cumulative across each
year.
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

180

Current
Target

234

Red
Threshold

187.2

It was expected that the completion of new build affordable homes would drop in the fourth quarter with the majority of
schemes delivering in the first three quarters. In fact the fourth quarter has been mixed picture as result of the impact
of the Covid-19 virus.
The Marconi site at Waterwells has seen a delay due to Land Registry Title issues, these have been resolved. This
combined with the virus means that no properties have been completed in the last quarter.
Guinness have completed 29 homes for Shared Ownership sale on the Quays site, 18 more than had been expected.
GCH also completed 3 Affordable Rent bungalows at Parklands in Sevenvale.
Many construction sites having ceased work, and supply chains closing down. It is likely that there will be few
Affordable Housing Completions in Quarter 1 of 2020-21, and at present Housing Associations are not in a position to
advise on revised trajectories.
City Growth & Delivery Manager

CGD14

Percentage of affordable housing built to Category 2 building regulations standards
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

2%

Current
Target

15%

Red
Threshold

12.5%

4 units have been completed to Category 2 standard during the year out of 180 new affordable homes built.
Category 2 – Accessible and adaptable dwellings. This requirement is met when a new dwelling provides reasonable provision
for most people to access the dwelling and includes features that make it suitable for a range of potential occupants, including
older people, individuals with reduced mobility and some wheelchair users.
City Growth & Delivery Manager

Page
3 23

CGD15

Percentage of affordable housing built to Category 3 building regulations standards
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

2.7%

Current
Target

5%

Red
Threshold

3%

5 units have been completed during the year to Category 3 standard of the 180 total affordable completions.
Category 3 – Wheelchair user dwellings. This requirement is achieved when a new dwelling provides reasonable provisions for
a wheelchair user to live in the dwelling and have the ability to use any outdoor space, parking and communal facilities.
City Growth & Delivery Manager

CGD5

Percentage of major applications where decisions were made within the agreed timescale or
agreed extended period.
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

100%

Current
Target

66%

Red
Threshold

59.4%

All 4 major applications were determined within the agreed timescales, giving a performance of 100% against a local
target of 66% and a national target of 60%. This demonstrates excellent performance and reflects the planning team’s
focus on delivering major developments within the city.
Business Transformation Manager (Planning); City Growth & Delivery Manager

Page
4 24

CGD6

Percentage of minor applications where decisions were made within the agreed timescale or
agreed extended period.
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

71%

Current
Target

74%

Red
Threshold

69.93%

17 of the 24 minor applications determined were within agreed timescales giving a performance of 71%. This was
slightly below the local target of 74% but was above the 70% national target. This demonstrates a very positive
direction of travel and an improvement compared to the 65% performance for Q.3.
Business Transformation Manager (Planning); City Growth & Delivery Manager

CIE21

Number of active groups involved in open space management
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

9

Current
Target

9

Red
Threshold

8

All 9 Groups have been active throughout the year, some are established and have been in existence for a number of
years now, some were newer at the start of the year and have been finding their feet, it is pleasing to see that these
now appear to have found their feet.
Making sure the groups felt valued and supported was key to ensuring they remained active throughout the year and
we will continue to
work towards increasing their number and resilience.
It is important for the City Council to keep a strong working relationship with these groups to ensure the numbers do
not decrease. This is something we have worked on for the previous year and this has been successful to date.
Due to the recent Covid-19 outbreak, we have seen little activity recently, but will work closely with the groups when
things return back to normal.
Climate Change and Environment Manager ; Dawn Fearn

Page
5 25

CIE3

Percentage of total waste recycled
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

41.91%

Current
Target

50%

Red
Threshold

40%

The average amount of waste recycled for the year was 44.14% - this was up from the year before (41.48%)
This year we saw the introduction of the new lids and guidelines for recycling, this was towards the end of the year so
we will monitor how this affects recycling over the new year.
The dip in recycling for Quarter 4 can mainly be attributed by the high level of wet weather, resulting in a reduction of
Garden Waste.
March's total will have been affected by Covid 19 and the loss of garden waste during March, some of which will have
added to the residual tonnage.
Hopefully with improvements being made to waste and recycling collections, for example this year’s introduction of
the new lids, we will continue to see a year on year growth of the percentage of waste recycled.
Recycling and Streetscene Manager

CIE4

Percentage of domestic waste collected on time
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

99.93%

Current
Target

99%

Red
Threshold

98%

Percentage of missed domestic bins remained low during April and within KPI target. During Covid 19 situation
domestic waste collections are prioritised above garden waste to ensure residents domestic waste collections are
carried out. The low number of missed bins is a positive result especially considering there was a 6.05% increase in
the amount of waste generated compared to April 2019. The Council's contractor Amey have to be commended for
ensuring collections were completed.
Streetcare Client Officer; Recycling and Streetscene Manager

Page
6 26

COMM3

Percentage of Positive Media Coverage
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

22.64%

Current
Target

60%

Red
Threshold

45%

Over the quarter we also saw the liquidation of Marketing Gloucester (MGL). There was significant media interest in
this locally as events unfolded, due to the 100% share Gloucester City Council had in MGL and the state of the
company’s finances prior to liquidation. This became an exclusive for one outlet, Punchline Magazine, whose parent
company was a creditor owed by MGL and therefore was issued information about the liquidation. Once Coronavirus
became the more pressing, ongoing news story, media enquiries about MGL have stopped, but we anticipate this
starting again as liquidation proceedings continue and we move into the Recovery phase of the pandemic.

CST1

Average wait time for customers to be seen (Face to Face)
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

00m00s

Current
Target

00m00s

Red
Threshold

25m00s

For April the data for recording the average wait time for customers in reception is not available as the system used to
record this, Q-Flow, was de-commissioned back in July.
We are awaiting the implementation of Firmstep* and once this is in place, we will be able to have more accurate data
regarding the footfall for both appointments and drop in customers.
*Firmstep is a customer experience platform that creates seamless and intuitive digital services that drive channel shift and provide
the highest standards of customer services which are fast and simple to build. It supports the traditional access channels
(telephony) whilst also embracing web self-service, mobile and social media.
Customer Service Transformation Manager; Customer Services Team Leader

Page
7 27

CST8

Percentage of complaints that escalate to stage 2
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

4.76%

Current
Target

10%

Red
Threshold

12%

Q2 saw a brief spike in complaints being escalated to stage 2 of the complaints procedure. As a consequence of the
spike the process was reviewed. All complainants are provided with a leaflet which explains the Council’s procedure,
each stage of the process and the opportunity to escalate a complaint if necessary.
Customer Service Transformation Manager; Customer Services Team Leader

Page
8 28

H23

Average number of Households in Temporary Accommodation
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

182

Current
Target

120

Red
Threshold

150

At the end of Q4 we had 182 households in temporary accommodation which is decrease on Q3 figure of 191. This
decrease is evidence of the work that the B&B task force have been doing, it is also the result of the robust
assessments being made by Housing Officers as the team continuously strive to improve their performance.
Improvements to how we record households who have made their own arrangements have continued this quarter, to
enable us to have a clearer picture of who and what duty we owe.
The breakdown of the 182 is as follows:
84 (average) families in temporary accommodation, albeit dispersed or hostel or B&B.
98 (average) singles/couples households are accommodated in temporary accommodation, albeit dispersed, hostel
or B&B
Out of these 34 households (on average) have made their own arrangements
3 families were in Places of Safety during the period.
Focus over the next 12 months will be on securing longer term accommodation so that households are able to move
out of the 'temporary' category, therefore preventing a 'bottleneck' in the system.
Please note- Temporary Accommodation numbers also include people who are staying temporarily with friend or
family. It is important to note that the Council will always need to use Temporary Accommodation and our goal is to
ensure this accommodation is of a good standard and appropriate to the needs of the individuals placed.
Housing Services Manager; Housing Team Leader

Page
9 29

H24

Average number of households in B & B
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

52

Current
Target

50

Red
Threshold

65

We are pleased that for Q4 the number of households in B&B accommodation has further reduced. This is due to the
effort and focus of the B&B task force and our commitment to reduce the use of B&B accommodation for our
residents. Through work to increase the number of temporary accommodation units in the City we are slowly reducing
the dependence on B&Bs.
This figure is created by calculating the average number of households in B&B accommodation across the quarter,
rather than using the actual figure on the last day of the quarter.
Housing Services Manager; Housing Team Leader

H9

Number of families with children in B&B accommodation beyond 6 weeks
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

8

Current
Target

0

Red
Threshold

12

In Quarter 4 we continued to see improvements to the number of families in B&B over 6 weeks. Further
improvements were made to the 'Bed and Breakfast Taskforce' meetings that closely focusses on finding move-on
options for those that already had an 'accepted' homeless decision; or for those in temporary accommodation who
were unlikely go on to be owed a 'full duty' giving the local authority full obligations to rehouse.
Out of the 8 families included in the measure, 1 has an offer of accommodation, although this has been delayed due
to the Covid-19 emergency. Although the full impact of the current emergency wasn't seen until towards the end of
this quarter there has been some impact in this quarter with a slow down in moving households into dispersed
accommodation and delays in planned works which have meant properties weren't available as planned.
We know there is still a lot of work to do and we will continue to work hard focusing our efforts, and we are expecting
to see further improvements due to the 'Bed and Breakfast Taskforce' meetings.
Important to note that these families are not necessarily the same from the previous quarter. All families in temporary
accommodation are monitored regularly by the B&B Taskforce.)
Housing Services Manager; Housing Team Leader

Page
10 30

HR1

Staff Turnover
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

1.32%

Current
Target

15%

Red
Threshold

18%

We continue to remain significantly below target in terms of staff turnover figures, which is pleasing to note. For
comparison purposes, there were also 3 voluntary leavers in Quarter 3 and this number remains unchanged for
Quarter 4.
HR Business Partner

HR4

Absence Rate
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

3.5%

Current
Target

2.7%

Red
Threshold

4%

Absence levels for Quarter 4 have increased when compared to Quarter 3 and we are now above our target of 2.7%
for this quarter. This increase is attributable both to a number of long term sickness absence cases and to an
increase in short term sickness absence during Quarter 4, largely due to seasonal illnesses. Short term seasonal
sickness absence levels were particularly high in January and February 2020, which has impacted on the figures for
Quarter 4. Absence levels are proactively monitored at SMT level and Service Managers receive detailed monthly
management information on absence within their service areas. Service Managers are also proactively encouraged
to seek early HR and Occupational Health advice and support in the management of any absence issues to ensure
that these are being managed appropriately and as per policy.
HR Business Partner

Page
11 31

PG8

Percentage of information governance responses (FOI/EIR,DPA,SAR) compliant with statutory
deadlines
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

95.42%

Current
Target

80%

Red
Threshold

72%

The aim is to respond to all requests by the statutory deadline, however, a target of 80% is set for monitoring
purposes. Following a dip in Q2, performance has seen a marked improvement in the final two quarters of the year,
reaching a high of 95.42% for the final quarter of the year to increase performance for the year as whole by just under
2% when compared with the previous year. All services are now performing above target and only very complex
requests exceeding the statutory deadline. This improvement has in large been due to consistent internal monitoring
and reporting on service performance, in addition to new processes implemented by some teams that have improved
how requests are handled. The council will continue to strive to respond to all requests within the statutory timescale
and recent performance indicates that the current high standard will be maintained.
Policy & Governance Manager

Page
12 32

VE2

Museum of Gloucester Footfall
Status
Short Term
Trend
Long Term
Trend
Current
Value

12,906

Current
Target

20,000

Red
Threshold

18,000

The final quarter of 2019-20 saw the sudden closure of the Museum of Gloucester on the 17th March due to COVID19.
The 28th January 2020 saw the closure of the Ben Uri exhibition which was curated in partnership with the Ben Uri
Museum in London and the Gloucestershire Action for Refugees and Asylum Seekers. Over the 17 week period,
nearly 3500 visitors saw the exhibition. This exhibition was a positive addition to the Museum programme as it
connected to many residents of Gloucester.
I-MMIGRATE launched on the 15th February 2020 and showcases the stories of black and minority ethic
communities from the Windrush generation in Gloucester and African diaspora in Cheltenham through 20 powerful
images and oral histories. 1200 people viewed the exhibition in the 5 weeks it was available to the public before the
Museum closed to the public.
The William Simmonds exhibition continued into the final quarter with a planned end date of the 18th April. This
specialist exhibition saw 3300 people view the arts and crafts objects, many of which are part of the Gloucester
Museums service collection.
To compliment the Museum exhibition programme, a number of free and paid for events took place including puppet
making and talks from guest speakers. The Museum's very own 'Doc Saurus' interacted with a total of 500 people
during the 2 occasions he appeared in the Museum, a great hands-on experience for visitors to the Museum.
Due to the sudden closure of the Museum, the team are working hard in curating digital content to continue to engage
with it's followers on social media and to gain new users who may not have interacted with the service previously.
Programme discussions are taking place in preparation for when the Museum reopens up to the public.

Visitor Experience Team Leader; Visitor Experience Manager

Page
13 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Meeting:

Cabinet
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Date:

Subject:

Financial Outturn 2019/20

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jon Topping, Head of Policy & Resources

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jon.topping@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

17 June 2020
6 July 2020

No
Tel: 396242

1. Detailed Performance by Portfolio
2. Capital Outturn
3. Savings Performance

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To inform members of the final Council position against agreed budgets for the
2019/20 financial year. This includes a summary of how the Council has progressed
against key savings targets for the year. It also highlights some key performance
indicators.

1.2

For Cabinet to note the final outturn position and to approve movement to and from
earmarked revenue reserves.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

It be noted that:
i. The year-end position for the financial year 2019/20 is a decrease to the
General Fund balance of £172k against a budgeted decrease of £90k.
ii. The General Fund balance has decreased from £1.673m to £1.501m at the
end of 2019/20.
iii. The savings achieved in year total £170k.
iv. That the level of earmarked reserves has reduced by £535k to £4.031m.
v. The impact of COVID19 pandemic on the Council year end position

(2)
2.2

The transfers to and from earmarked reserves as detailed in the table in
section 6 of this report be APPROVED

Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the information contained in
the report and make any recommendations to the Cabinet.

Page 35

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

This report is intended to give members a clear and concise view of the 2019/20
outturn of the Council. The report focuses on the major changes which have occurred
since Quarter 3 reporting, as the majority of savings/pressures had already been
reported at that stage.

3.2

The reported position at Quarter 3 was to increase the general fund by £51k, which
has weakened by £221k to a decrease of £172k at year end.

3.3

The savings target for 2019/20 was £250k. A further £70k of savings unachieved in
2018/19 was added to that target to give an overall savings target of £320k. Savings
actually achieved in the year total £170k. Where savings targets have not been
achieved these will be delivered in 2020/21. Appendix 3 provides further details.

3.4

The decrease in the General Fund has been achieved against the background of
continued savings targets and reductions in funding from prior years.

3.5

The impact of COVID19 on the financial outturn for 2019/20 cannot be
underestimated and has had a significant effect on the expected outturn against
budget.

4.0

Whole Council Summary

4.1

A summary table below shows the outturn position for the Council by cabinet portfolio.
Appendix 1 provides the breakdown of the totals within each portfolio.

Council Summary
Regeneration and Economy
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Performance and Resources
Culture
Planning and Housing
Environment
Corporate and Funding
Total

19/20
Budget
(3,248)
1,458
5,552
981
82
4,022
(8,755)
91

Year
End
Final
Final
Variance
(4,124)
(876)
1,545
87
5,912
360
1,384
403
656
574
4,521
499
(9,720)
(965)
172
81

4.2

The General Fund and earmarked reserves balance continue to put the Council in a
strong financial position in the uncertain climate of Local Authority funding.

4.3

The table above highlights some significant variances on budget in year, however
these have either been managed in the 2020/21 budget approved in February 2020
such as planning income or were non-recurring pressure going forward including
Amey and Transformation costs.

Page 36

5.0

Significant Changes from Areas previously reported
COVID19

5.1

The COVID19 pandemic during March 2020 had an impact on a number of areas
within the Council attracting significant additional costs or lost income prior to the end
of the financial year and the estimated impacts are detailed below:


Car Parking - lost income £100k



Homelessness – additional costs 120k



Cultural Services - lost income £100k

Additional costs were also incurred in IT, Revenues & Benefits plus lost income from
areas such as the Arbor.
The Council did receive its first tranche of funding prior to year end of £65k which
offset some of these additional pressures.
5.2

Without the unforeseen impact of COVID19 the Council’s in year financial outturn
would have been significantly within budget set by Council for 2019/20.
Transformation

5.3

The transformation programme saw the Council vacate the HKP warehouses and
move to Shire Hall, as well as the full refurbishment and occupation of the Gateway.
The transformation programme also included the digital transformation and
significant upgrade to the Council’s IT infrastructure. This enabled agile and remote
working while also changing processes to improve the customer interaction with the
Council including the new contact centre and customer portal. The in-year cost of
this programme was £683k plus an additional £160k revenue in IT, as highlighted at
Quarter 3.

5.4

In line with the Cabinet decision in September 2018, £550k of these costs have been
met from reserves with remainder managed in the final outturn position. The benefits
of this significant investment by the Council have been seen during the current
pandemic.
Regeneration & Economy

5.5

As highlighted at Quarter 3 expenditure on one off property costs was greater than
budgeted during the year of which £103k have been met from the Repairs Reserve.

5.6

The significant change in the quarter was the unbudgeted benefit of the investments
at St Oswald’s and Eastgate. Alongside the treasury management team taking
advantage of favourable short-term borrowing rates this has given a significant
favourable position to the Council that has offset previously reported adverse
variances in other portfolios.
Communities and Neighbourhoods

5.7

The outturn for this portfolio are generally in line with the quarter 3 estimates with the
biggest change being a change in spend on temporary accommodation as a result of
COVID19. The position has moved from a forecast underspend following initiatives
undertaken by the Council and the support of the Flexible Homelessness Prevention
Grant to a small overspend.
Page 37

Performance and Resources

5.8

There has been a significant increase in the cost of providing Housing Subsidy during
the year. As noted in the Q3 reporting the Council manage more than £37m of
housing subsidy and benefit payments and the smallest percentage change can have
a significant impact on the final outturn. The final quarter saw an adverse movement
to this balance of £407k which has resulted in a final overspend position of £443k.
This cost is out of the Council’s control and has continued to change across 2019/20.

5.9

The decrease to costs in Financial and Corporate is a result of the corporate bad debt
provision. At each financial year end the Council puts money aside to cover
outstanding debtors where it may not be possible to recover the full amount. This is
standard and good financial practice. During the current financial year we have been
proactively pursuing aged debt as a result of this the required level of provision has
decreased by £213k in this financial year and this is reflected in the year end outturn.
Culture & Leisure

5.10

The Culture and Trading area has been affected as a result of COVID19 with income
being significantly impacted across the service effecting the Guildhall in particular,
but also impacting the Museums and Food & Drink.

5.11

The portfolio was also impacted by the placing of MGL into administration and all the
outstanding debt from the company has been provided for in 2019/20 outturn.
Planning and Housing

5.12

As indicated at Quarter 2, income from Planning Fees provides a significant source
of funding for the Service and has proved to be significantly lower than the budgeted
levels for the year. There are two major elements to this forecast variance:
a. Delay in the submission of several major applications from developers.
b. A significant reduction in the income from non-major applications.
Environment

5.13

As noted at Quarter 3, there is a cost pressure in relation to the Amey contract that
results from the contract indexation being higher than the Council budgeted for. The
Council has continued to work with Amey to resolve the recycling income issue and
hopes to see an improvement in this area in 2020/21. The demand for garden waste
services has also seen the need to add an additional vehicle and crew to the contract
over the costs budgeted. These pressures have been addressed in the 2020/21
Money Plan.

5.14

Income at the Crematorium is forecast to be lower than 2018/19 partly as a result of
Cheltenham crematorium now being back in operation and reduced demand for
services. As a result, the income for the year is £125k less than the budgeted target
for 2019/20. The Bereavement Services Manager has already identified a number of
new services and opportunities to address this in 2020/21.
Corporate and Funding

5.15

The increased income within the Corporate and Funding line is largely attributable to
income from the Business Rates pool and retained business rates in year.

Page 38

6.0

Movement in Earmarked Reserves

6.1

The Council has drawn down previously reserved funds to pay for their intended
usage during 2019/20 and in a number of cases has been able to increase balances
to pay for services in future years. The Council continues to hold an earmarked
reserve balance of over £4.0m. The balances and in year movement are summarised
in the following table.

Reserve Name
Insurance
Shopmobility
Historic Buildings
Lottery
Environmental Insurance
Other Leisure
Members Allocation
Repairs
Regeneration
VAT Shelter
Housing Survey
Trading
Commuted Sums
Planning Grant
Participatory Budget
Community Builder
Economic Dev Grant
Flooding Works
Business Rates
Great Place
Museum Bequest
Recovery Reserve
EU Exit Reserve
Reserves Total

Opening
Balance
10
29
53
19
1000
4
1
103
201
716
60
50
768
35
15
85
20
10
974
93
305
17
4,568

Transfers Transfers
Out
in
1
103
375
197
550
252
50
59
15
31
20
100
947

412

Closing
Balance
10
29
53
20
1,000
4
1
23
418
60
827
35
54
10
974
93
305
100
17
4,033

6.2

There has been a net draw down from the regeneration reserve in the year. The net
surplus from the SWRDA assets generated £197k to contribute to the reserve. The
reserve was earmarked to contribute towards the Council’s regeneration projects in
19/20, £375k was spent in year towards this project leaving an overall net usage of
the reserve of £178k. This was anticipated in forecasts for the reserve and the
balance will continue to be used to support future regeneration work.

6.3

The authority continues to receive funding relating to the arrangement for a “VAT
shelter” relating to the Housing Stock transfer of 2015. In 2019/20 funding of £252k
was received. £550k was allocated from the reserve to fund transformation projects
as reported to Cabinet in September 2018. The current balance of this reserve has
been earmarked for the development at Black Dog Way, this funding will be paid early
in 2020/21.
Page 39

6.4

The repairs reserve began the year with a balance of £103k. In year there has been
£103k used on repair works.

6.5

The Commuted Sums reserve holds sums received from developers to pay for
grounds maintenance and environmental works in future years. The Council received
£59k in 2019/2019.

6.6

The Recovery Reserve has been put in place to assist in covering costs incurred in
supporting the recovery from the impacts of COVID19.

7.0

Capital Programme

7.1

The outturn position for the Capital Programme is £75.209m against the budget for
the year of £76.429m. The underspend was the result of expenditure on projects
within the approved five-year capital programme which where expenditure expected
in 2019/20 has moved into subsequent years.

7.2

Expenditure for 2019/20 includes £1.2m on the Kings Square Development which
includes funds earmarked under the regeneration reserves to deliver this project.
Expenditure on ICT projects providing technology and equipment enabled the
Council to move forward and become more agile as part of the wider transformation
project. The £0.141m spend on Building Improvements includes costs associated
with the relocation project at 92-94 Westgate Street. The expenditure on St Oswald’s
and Eastgate Shopping Centre were the purchase of these sites to enable future
regeneration and housing projects for the City.

7.2

The nature of capital projects means that many of them span a number of financial
years, budgets are set per project any unspent budgets at the end of any one financial
year may be carried forward into the next

7.3

A summarised table for the Capital Programme is shown as Appendix 2.

8.0

Prompt payment performance

8.1

The Council aims to make payments to all suppliers promptly and in accordance with
contract terms. The performance on invoice payments during the year is summarised
in a table below. Overall, 93% of invoices received in the year were paid within 30
days of receipt (93% in 2018/19) and the average number of days to pay an invoice
was 7 (7 in 2018/19).

Q1
Paid within 5 days
Paid within 10 days
Paid within 30 days
Paid over 30 days
Total Invoices paid
Average Days to Pay

Q2

Q3

Q4

TOTAL

1,458

76%

1,328

69%

1,514

72%

1,568

78%

5,868

74%

1,679

88%

1,538

80%

1,709

82%

1,788

89%

6,714

85%

1,847

97%

1,704

89%

1,909

91%

1,920

96%

7,380

93%

65

3%

214

11%

181

9%

80

4%

540

7%

1,912

1,918

2,090

2,000

7,920

6

9

8

6

7

Page 40

9.0
9.1

Social Value Considerations
There are no social value implications as a result of this report.

10.0
10.1

Alternative Options Considered
When consider how to reduce budgetary pressure or make savings officers explore
a wide range of options.

11.0
11.1

Reasons for Recommendations
It is a good practice for members to be regularly informed of the current financial
position of the Council. This report is intended to make members any of any
significant issues in relation to financial standing and any actions that officers are
taking in response to identified variances.

12.0
12.1

Future Work and Conclusions
Work will continue to reach savings targets or limit in year budget pressures.

13.0
13.1

Financial Implications
All financial implications are contained within the report which is of a wholly financial
nature.

14.0
14.1

Legal Implications
There are no legal implications from this report.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report)

15.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
15.1 There are no specific risks or opportunities as a result of this report
16.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

16.1

A PIA screening assessment has been undertaken and the impact is neutral. A full
PIA is not required.

17.0
17.1

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety
None

17.2

Sustainability
None

17.3

Staffing & Trade Union
None

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Monitoring Position

Appendix 3

Month 12 : March 2020

Council Summary
Regeneration and Economy
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Performance and Resources
Culture
Planning and Housing
Environment
Corporate and Funding
Total

19/20
Year End
Final
Budget
Final
Variance
(3,248)
(4,124)
(876)
1,458
1,545
87
5,552
5,912
360
981
1,384
403
82
656
574
4,022
4,521
499
(8,755)
(9,720)
(965)
91
172
81

Performance and Resources
Internal Audit
Financial and Corporate
Revenues and Benefits Admin
Housing Subsidy
IT
Human Resources
Communications
Legal Services
Contact Centre and Customer Services
Democratic Services
Total

19/20
Year End
Final
Budget
Final
Variance
190
191
1
1,238
965
(273)
913
884
(29)
(377)
66
443
1,522
1,792
270
278
279
2
89
84
(5)
394
390
(4)
448
439
(9)
858
821
(36)
5,552
5,912
360

Regeneration & Economy
Economic Development
Asset Management
Commercial Property
Parking
Senior Management
Markets and Street Trading
Total

19/20
Year End
Final
Budget
Final
Variance
199
256
57
741
985
244
(3,319)
(4,526)
(1,207)
(1,238)
(1,278)
(39)
473
528
55
(106)
(90)
15
(3,248)
(4,124)
(876)

Culture
Museums
Food and Drink
Guildhall
Aspire Client
TIC
Great Place
Marketing Gloucester
Visitor Experience
Total

19/20
Year End
Final
Budget
Final
Variance
213
311
98
(38)
(8)
30
64
299
234
(30)
(30)
0
20
(1)
(21)
0
0
0
261
336
75
491
478
(13)
981
1,384
403

Page 43

Environment
Waste and Streetcare
Neighbourhood Management
Countryside and Allotments
Environmental Health
Flooding and emergency planning
Head of Service
Cemetery and Crematorium
Licensing
Total

19/20
Year End
Final
Budget
Final
Variance
4,742
5,156
414
19
12
(7)
87
73
(14)
602
582
(20)
107
101
(6)
62
64
2
(1,339)
(1,214)
125
(257)
(251)
5
4,022
4,521
499

Communities and Neighbourhoods
Voluntary Sector Grants
Community Strategy and Other Projects
Homelessness
Shopmobility
Health and Safety
Private Sector Housing
Total

19/20
Year End
Final
Budget
Final
Variance
135
131
(4)
145
180
35
1,174
1,194
20
76
71
(5)
3
1
(1)
(73)
(32)
41
1,458
1,545
87

Planning and Housing
Housing Strategy and SIB
Planning
Total

19/20
Budget

Year End
Final
Final
Variance
0
0
0
82
656
574
82
656
574

Page 44

Capital Programme 2019/20
Scheme

Page 45

Kings Square development
St Oswald's
Eastgate Shopping Centre
GWR - Railway Improvements
Kings Walk Shopping Centre
City Centre Improvement Fund
GCC Building Improvements
ICT Projects
Housing projects
Drainage and Flood Protection Works
Townscape Heritage Initiative - HLF
Ranger Centre Barns/Storage
Horsbere Brook Local Nature Reserve works
Play Area Improvement Programme
Crematorium Cremator Impovements
Grant Funded Projects
Robinswood All Paths Project
Eastern Avenue Waste Depot
Robinswood Hill
GL1 Emergency Works
SWRDA Asset Transfer works
TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Appendix 2
Budget
2019/20
1,000,000
57,000,000
12,500,000
3,000,000
475,289
148,371
50,000
1,042,250
150,353
277,868
67,490
76,698
116,560
228,168
49,683
200,000
46,490
7,645
76,429,220

Actual
Spend to
date
1,236,054
56,949,378
12,259,431
99,487
2,026,413
283,661
140,722
529,853
720,799
42,656
277,868
2,440
1,215
81,594
20,538
228,168
1,092
73,138
190,000
44,794
75,209,302

Variance

(236,054)
50,622
240,569
(99,487)
973,587
191,628
7,649
(479,853)
321,451
107,697
(0)
65,050
75,483
34,966
(20,538)
0
48,591
(73,138)
10,000
1,696
7,645
1,219,918

This page is intentionally left blank

Savings Monitoring 2019/20

Appendix 1

Prior Year Savings

Service

Details: aim of the project

Target

Achieved In Progress

At Risk

£000

£000

£000

£000

Comments

Policy & Resources

Reduce postage costs

(20)

(20)

0

0

Digital mail project completed in 219/20

Policy & Resources

Property Investment Strategy

(50)

(50)

0

0

As highlighted in the report, a number of
investments have been completed in accordance
with the property investment strategy.

(70)

(70)

0

0

Total

Savings Target 2019/20
Page 47

Service

Details: aim of the project

Target
£000

Achieved In Progress
£000
£000

At Risk
£000

Comments

Policy and Resources

Energy efficiencies and income generation
opportunities

(50)

0

(50)

0

In progress PV has been installed on the
Guildhall roof and will start to show some
efficiencies.

Policy and Resources

Property Investment Strategy

(100)

(100)

0

0

As highlighted in the report, a number of
investments have been completed in accordance
with the property investment strategy.

Policy and Resources

Disposal of HKP warehouses

(100)

0

(100)

0

Offers have been received and the preferred
bidder has been agreed. Final negotiations are
ongoing.

(250)

(100)

(150)

0

Savings Brought Forward

(70)

(70)

0

0

Total

(320)

(170)

(150)

0

Total

Status

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

Subject:

Strategic Risk Register Update

Report Of:

Head of Audit Risk Assurance (ARA): Chief Internal Auditor

Wards Affected:

Not applicable

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Theresa Mortimer, Head of Audit Risk Assurance (Chief Internal
Auditor)

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email:
Theresa.mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk
Appendices:

17 June 2020

No

Tel: 01452
328883 or 01452
396430

1. Strategic Risk Register as at 25th February 2020

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To present the Strategic Risk Register (SRR) as at 25th February 2020 to Members
for their awareness and consideration.
This report was originally to be presented to the Cabinet on 11th March 2020, but,
due to other Cabinet agenda priority items, it is now being presented at the 17th
June 2020 meeting. The SRR report of 25th February 2020, whilst reflecting an
earlier position, is the report agreed by the Audit and Governance Committee (9th
March 2020).

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that the Strategic Risk Register be noted and
endorsed.

3.0

Background and Key Issues
Risk Management - Maximising Opportunities by taking Managed Risks

3.1

It has always been important for organisations to identify and manage their risks.
This view has been reinforced by public sector legislation i.e. the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015 where it states ‘A relevant authority must ensure that it has
a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of its
functions and the achievement of its aims and objectives, ensures that the financial
and operational management of the authority is effective and includes effective
arrangements for the management of risk.’

Page 49

3.2

In addition, the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework
(CIPFA/SOLACE 2016) notes seven key principles to enable the development of
good governance within public services, one of which states that good governance
is ‘managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management.’
Strategic Risk Register

3.3

The SRR is reviewed and updated quarterly by the SMT. The Council’s Risk
Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023 provides the framework for
the effective management of risks and opportunities within the Council, supports
decision making at all levels, and aids delivery of the Council Plan values, key
actions and projects. The Strategy also includes the process for monitoring and
reporting of strategic risks. The Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy
2020–2023 was last updated and approved by Members on 20th January 2020
and 12th February 2020 (Cabinet approval following recommendation by Audit
and Governance Committee).

3.4

The Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023 requires the
Council to assess risks at a strategic level through documentation and
management of the SRR. The SRR is owned and formally reviewed by SMT on a
regular basis. Strategic risk owners are at SMT level.

3.5

Member receipt and endorsement of the SRR is completed on a biannual basis
by the Audit and Governance Committee and Cabinet. This is to enable
Member awareness of the strategic risks facing the Council, the mitigation
measures put in place to manage them and the impact on decisions to be made
by the Council.

3.6

This report is the second SRR update to Members within 2019/20; the first update
being in July 2019.

3.7

This current version has been reviewed and revised, as appropriate, being
presented to the SMT on 25th February 2020 for agreement, prior to presentation to
the Audit and Governance Committee (9th March 2020).

3.8

At the end of 2019/20, four of the risks had Current Scores of High. These relate to
business continuity management (both operational and ICT), GDPR continued
compliance and ongoing maintenance of the Property Investment Strategy. These
continue to be closely monitored, but given their strategic importance to the Council,
they remain high risk areas.

Page 50

Risk
No.

Risk Description

Original Current Current
Score
Score
Score
Qtr1
Qtr2
16
8
8

Current
Score
Qtr3
8

Current
Score
Qtr4
8

1.8

Failure to manage information
in accordance with legislation.

1.9

Ability to respond effectively to
unexpected events in support
of our communities (e.g.
weather/terror attack/phone
system failure/other).

12

8

8

8

8

1.10

Council services loss for a
16
significant period, due to
technology failure (leading to
other financial, reputational and
information governance risks).

8

8

8

8

1.14

Negative financial implications
16
due to inappropriate delivery
and management of the
Property Investment Strategy;
and a risk of political priorities
diluting commercial
considerations around hedging.

8

8

8

8

3.7

At the first quarter of 2019/20, a strategic risk benchmarking exercise was
undertaken against six neighbouring and similar local authorities and presented to
the SMT by the Senior Risk Management Advisor (SRMA).
The main aim of this analysis of the categories or types of risk recorded within the
strategic risk registers was to evaluate whether the Council had considered and
captured all key types of risks associated with delivering the Council’s objectives
and in line with similar local authorities.
From scrutiny of the information and discussion by the SMT, it was concluded that
the strategic risks identified and assessed by Gloucester City Council were in line
with expectation of the Council’s areas of business and other similar authorities.
At the request of SMT, this benchmarking exercise will be undertaken annually.

3.8

During 2019/2020, two strategic risk areas were highlighted by the SRMA for SMT
consideration:


The impact to the Council’s business with climate change; and



The impact, on the Council, of the UK’s exit from the European Union (EU),
including future funding.

Page 51

The decision of SMT was that both were emerging risk areas, to be continually
monitored within year. Based on this position, the risks were not included on the
strategic risk register in 2019/20.
3.9

There have been no risks, on the SRR, added or removed during 2019/20.

3.10 At the SMT meeting on 8th October 2019, to finalise the Quarter 2 SRR, a strategic
risk awareness and discussion session was held, facilitated by the Council’s
insurers, Zurich Municipal, jointly with the SRMA, to strengthen understanding of
strategic risk identification and scoring. This session complemented the
benchmarking exercise in Quarter 1 and the consideration of emerging risks.
4.0

Social Value Considerations

4.1

There are no ‘Social Value’ considerations arising out of the recommendations in
this report.

5.0

Environmental Implications

5.1

There are no ‘Environmental’ implications arising out of the recommendations in this
report.

6.0

Alternative Options Considered

6.1

The alternative option is not to present the Strategic Risk Register to Members. This
option is not compliant with the CIPFA: Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for
Local Authorities and Police (2018 Edition) and does not support strategic risk
awareness or informed prudent decision making.

7.0

Reasons for Recommendations
Risk Governance

7.1

The Audit and Governance Committee’s role (as per the Constitution) includes the
function to ‘monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance
arrangements’ including ‘monitoring the arrangements for the identification,
monitoring and control of strategic and operational risk within the Council’.
Audit and Governance Committee

7.2

The CIPFA: ‘Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police
(2018)’ confirms that the role of an Audit Committee includes keeping up to date
with the risk profile of an organisation through regular review of the risk profile and
areas of strategic risk.

Cabinet
7.3

The Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023 includes the
following role and responsibility for Cabinet ‘Endorse the content of the Strategic
Risk Register and proposed risk mitigation plans, and monitor implementation’.

Page 52

7.4

This report aims to meet requirements 6.1 to 6.3 and support Member delivery of
their relevant roles and responsibilities.

8.0

Future Work and Conclusions

8.1

An embedded risk management approach helps to support the challenges that the
Council may face, allowing it to react dynamically to changing external
circumstances by enabling the Council to handle risk effectively and deliver
successful outcomes.

8.2

The Strategic Risk Register will continue to be formally reviewed and updated
quarterly by SMT, being present to the Audit and Governance Committee and
Cabinet twice a year.

9.0

Financial Implications

9.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from the report recommendations.
However, there are a number of risks within the Strategic Risk Register which, if not
managed, have the potential to expose the Council to financial costs which are not
provided for within existing budgets. The documented current controls and
mitigating actions aim to manage the risk of Council exposure to these costs.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report.)

10.0

Legal Implications

10.1

None specifically arising from the report recommendations.

10.2 It is fundamental that the Council has an embedded risk management
framework(including a Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 20202023) which considers the identification, recording and management of risks to the
Council in the delivery of its priorities and objectives.
10.3 The existence and application of an effective Risk Management Policy Statement
and Strategy 2020-2023 (including Member review of the Strategic Risk Register
and awareness of strategic risks) assists prudent decision making. Failure to
identify and manage strategic risks could lead to inappropriate decision making,
unnecessary liability and costly legal challenge.
(One Legal has been consulted in the preparation of this report.)
11.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
11.1 Failure to deliver on effective risk management, particularly during periods of
significant change, may have a detrimental effect on the achievement of the
potential opportunities and adverse effects that challenge the assets, reputation and
objectives of the Council, strategic decision making and the wellbeing of our
stakeholders.

Page 53

12.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA) and Safeguarding:

12.1 A requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 is for the Council to
‘ensure that it has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective
exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims and objectives, ensures
that the financial and operational management of the authority is effective and
includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.’
Adoption of the Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023
2020/2023 and the associated framework support and ensure compliance with the
Council’s equality policies.
12.2

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

13.0

Community Safety Implications

13.1

There are no ‘Community Safety’ implications arising out of the recommendations in
this report.

14.0

Staffing & Trade Union Implications

14.1

There are no ‘Staffing and Trade Union’ implications arising out of the
recommendations in this report.

Background Documents:
 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015;
 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016
(CIPFA/SOLACE); and
 Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 2020-2023.

Page 54

Strategic Risk Register Report – 2019/20 Quarter 4

SRR1 Strategic Risk Register
Risk

SRR1.1

Non
achievement of
the Money Plan
– including the
annual savings /
income targets
and the result of
a balanced
budget

Page 55

Risk Ref

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

4

4

16

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

*Budget setting process –
3
including consultation;
management/leadership input
into savings targets; and
Overview & Scrutiny and
Council involvement.
*Forecasting Money Plan for
medium term.
*Allocation of individual
savings/income targets to an
SMT sponsor, Cabinet
Member and leading
manager.
*Rigorous monthly monitoring
of the Council’s financial
position - monthly budget
monitoring (including budget
savings programme lines) at
budget holder level (Finance
led) and by SMT.
* Financial Services staff
professionally qualified in
accountancy-related
disciplines.
*Assurance reviews by
Internal Audit to ensure
compliance with approved
policies and procedures.
*Service Plans aligned with
resources and subject to
regular review.

2

6

1

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

3

2

6

Risk Owner
Head of Policy
& Resources

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Risk

SRR1.2

Adverse public
and media
relations

3

3

9

*Dedicated communications 3
and marketing resource with
defined service scope –
service delivery by County
Council (SLA).
*Regular monitoring of press
coverage.
*Formal route for media press
contact (controlled approach).
*Standardised FOI approach
with FOI Champions.
*Dedicated support for key
consultations.
*Communication Strategy on
key campaigns, including
performance measures.
*Internal Communications
Channel Plan.
*Complaints policy /
monitoring.
*Digital communications team
in place – including
objectives, policies and
procedures.
*Approved campaigns plan in
place.
*Release of new Council
website.

2

Lack of
competence,
staff
engagement,
probity and
professionalism
within the
authority
leading to
diminished
performance,

3

3

9

*Dedicated HR resource with 3
defined service scope –
service delivery by County
Council (s101 agreement).
*Adherence to best practice
recruitment and selection
procedures and principles.
*Member and staff training.
*Complaints monitoring.
*Member role descriptors.
*Codes of conduct for

2

Page 56

Risk Ref

SRR1.3

2

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

6

2

2

4

Corporate
Director Partnerships

6

3

1

3

Corporate
Director Partnerships

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Risk Owner

Risk Ref

Risk

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

inappropriate
behaviour, and
failure to comply
with governance
arrangements

Failure to
effectively
manage
contracts and
SLAs with key
partners / other
significant
bodies,
including:
Amey, Civica,
Marketing
Gloucester,
Aspire,
Gloucestershire
Airport, VCS
organisations,

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

2

2

Risk Owner

members and officers.
*Defined officer roles.
*Staff 1:1s and performance
appraisals.
*Disciplinary procedure.
*Adherence to health and
safety Policy and procedures.
*Staff survey.
*Staff engagement activities.
*Governance Group bimonthly meetings.
*Council Values and
behaviours refreshed and
adopted.
*Development Plan and
Learning & Training Plan in
place.
*OD Plan in place.
*Talent management scheme
and apprenticeship scheme
in place.
*Together Gloucester phase
1 (transformation) delivery.

Page 57
SRR1.4

Description

3

3

9

*Central list held of all
3
contracts and SLAs with
named responsible officers
and Members.
*In set up of the partnerships:
-Corporate procurement
strategy and procedures;
Contract Standing Orders;
Constitution requirements;
and Availability of advice from
legal, finance & procurement.
-Documentation on the
Council contracts register.
*Partnership specific controls
required (for each partner):
-Documented signed SLA.

2

6

3

4

Corporate
Director Service
Transformation

Risk Ref

Risk

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Gloucestershire
County Council
(e.g. Audit
shared service)
a

Failure to
support and
enable business
growth within
the city

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

Risk Owner

2

2

Head of Place

-Lead contact officers
assigned to each partner.
-Regular performance
management meetings, with
reporting to SMT/Committee.
-SLAs incorporate
contingency business plan
approach to mitigate loss of
service.
-Partnership risk registers –
either individually or within
the service risk register.
-Governance arrangements
identifying where decisions
are taken.
-Agreement of SLA KPIs,
performance standards and
payments (within contract).
-Ongoing negotiation with
partners to review current
contract contents, to ensure
up to date (e.g. GDPR
considerations) and fit for
purpose.

Page 58
SRR1.5

Description

3

3

9

*Support local businesses
3
both start up and new ‘Better Business For All’.
*Partnership support for
skills/jobs and attraction of
inward investment.
*Council’s promotion of city
through links with GFirst LEP;
Marketing Gloucester; and
with adjacent authorities (e.g.
JCS).
*Cultural Strategy – including
6 monthly review and update.
*Liaison with Business
Improvement District

2

6

4

4

Risk Ref

Risk

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

4

1

Risk Owner

(including consideration of
uncertainties arising from the
UK leaving the EU).
*Regeneration and Economic
Development Strategy in
place.
*Ongoing review and bidding
for regeneration funding, with
continued focus on
regeneration sites.
SRR1.6

Loss of finance,
resource and
reputation due
to fraudulent
activity

4

3

12

Page 59

*The following are approved 4
policies available to officers:
-Anti-fraud and corruption
strategy (including Antibribery policy and Anti-money
laundering policy).
-Whistle blowing policy.
-Fraud response plan.
*Financial regulations
(including standing orders).
*Existing internal control
framework.
*Internal Audit inc. Audit &
Governance Committee and
annual risk based internal
audit plan (deterrent).
*External audit presence
(deterrent).
*Benefit case referral to the
Single Fraud Investigation
Service – DWP.
*Brilliant Basics modules
(fraud awareness, project
management and influencing
skills) available to
management team.
*SLA with ARA (County
hosted) for drawdown of days
from Glos. Counter Fraud

1

4

5

4

Head of Policy
& Resources

Risk Ref

Risk

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

Risk Owner

2

2

Head of Place

Unit for targeted anti-fraud
work – Council position
reviewed monthly by S151
Officer and Chief Internal
Auditor.
SRR1.7

Failure to
deliver key
regeneration
priorities
(including Kings
Quarter and
Blackfriars)

3

3

9

Page 60

*Regeneration Advisory
3
Board.
*Capital Monitoring Steering
Group & existing capital
programme controls.
*Brilliant Basics modules
(project management and
influencing skills) available to
management team.
*Project specific controls that
should be in place:
-Project plans in place for
major schemes.
-Project review meetings led
by experienced/qualified
Members and Officers with
third party links/presence
(e.g. developers and
associated commercial
agents).
-Project update reporting to
Cabinet and Council (in line
with project plan milestones).
- Re-assessment of projects
at appropriate points to
review objectives and
deliverables.
- Maintenance and review of
project risk registers for each
regeneration project.
-Ongoing internal review and
financial scrutiny of projects.

2

6

6

4

Risk Ref

Risk

SRR1.8

Failure to
manage
information in
accordance with
legislation

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

4

4

16

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Page 61

*IT Security:
4
-Civica ITO contract includes
key IT security control
continued delivery with
ongoing client monitoring
required.
-Virus protection (desktop,
server, email, attachments
etc) and fire wall controls.
-Monitoring of internet access
and restriction on sites
permitted to access
-E-mail content scanning
(incl. Forcepoint).
-Physical security and
protection of IT suite.
-Procedures for login
lockdown when IT staff
leaving organisation.
-Data cleansing of IT
equipment prior to disposal.
-Client monitoring (in-house
intelligent client function)
team in place.
-IT risk register monthly
review and update by the IT
Operations Board.
*Use of information:
-FOI procedures;
standardised approach; &
FOI Champions.
-Information management
rules within the Constitution.
-Data Protection guide and
GDPR
implementation/training
action plan.
-Staff training and induction
to confirm appropriate
management of information.

2

8

7

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

4

1

4

Risk Owner
Head of Policy
& Resources

Risk Ref

Risk

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

Review and refresh all service
Business Continuity Plans to
ensure up-to-date and
appropriate content

29-Nov2019

3

2

Risk Owner

*Info stored / accessed Building access controls.
*SIRO role allocated.
*Information Governance
Board and ICT Strategy
Board in place.
*Suite of information policies
in place and available on
NETconsent policy
management system.
SRR1.9

Page 62

Ability to
respond
effectively to
unexpected
events in
support of our
communities
(e.g.
weather/terror
attack/phone
system
failure/other)

4

3

12

*Up-to-date Emergency
4
Response Plan, Flood Plan,
Vulnerable People Plan,
Pandemic Plan etc. drafted in
conjunction with agencies,
government departments and
other local authorities.
*Regular review and updating
of Emergency Response Plan
and other plans.
*Allocated Emergency Team
Leaders within the Council
e.g. District Emergency
Controller and Gold Officer
roles.
*Business continuity plans in
place for each Service.
*Bad weather policy and
communications.
*Climate change strategy
supported by Local
Resilience Forums.
*Emergency Contacts list
updated every quarter.
*Defined Mutual Aid
Agreement including all
Gloucestershire local
authorities.
*Continued testing of

2

8

8

6

Head of
Communities

Risk Ref

Risk

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

An ICT internal audit to be
completed to support the ICT
Action Plan

31-Jan2020

3

2

Risk Owner

Emergency Plan
arrangements; bi annual
exercises & live events (e.g.
Christmas call out exercise);
and use of Mutual Aid
agreement. With ongoing
shared learning.
SRR1.10

Page 63

Council services
loss for a
significant
period, due to
failure and
limited capacity
of IT
infrastructure
(leading to other
financial,
reputational and
information
governance
risks)

4

4

16

*Up to date IT asset register. 4
*Appropriate secure physical
location of the servers.
*Medium term IT
infrastructure investment
budget agreed and delivered
within 2016/17.
*Infrastructure/network
topology (mapping) with
action plan for regular review
and update including
identification, risk
assessment, costing and
priority ranking of IT
infrastructure options for
investment.
*PSN Compliance Certificate
achieved.
*ICT Business Continuity
Plan review and renewal
completed (platform for DR
and to be expanded for use
as the platform for all GCC
systems post relocation from
HKP).
*ICT Strategy in place.
*Information Governance
Board and ICT Security
Board in place.

2

8

9

6

Head of Policy
& Resources

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Risk

SRR1.11

Inability of the
council to
identify viable
plans to achieve
efficiencies
and/or income
generation.”Inab
ility of the
council to
identify viable
plans to achieve
efficiencies
and/or income
generation.

4

4

16

*Budget setting process –
3
including consultation;
management/leadership input
into savings targets; and
Overview & Scrutiny and
Council involvement.
*SMT and Cabinet review
and approval of Money Plan
savings delivery options –
including commissioning and
alternative delivery
opportunities for savings and
income generation.
*Allocation of individual
savings/income targets to an
SMT sponsor, Cabinet
Member and leading
manager.
*Rigorous monthly monitoring
of the Council’s financial
position - monthly income /
budget monitoring at budget
holder level (Finance led) and
by SMT.
*Engagement with GMT to
ensure corporate ownership
of financial challenges and
need for active identification
of efficiency & income
opportunities for the Council.

2

Inability of the
Council to
deliver the
Corporate Plan
to 2020

4

4

16

*Corporate Plan developed
3
jointly by Cabinet and Senior
Management Team,
scrutinised and endorsed by
the wider Council
membership.
*Corporate Plan approval
completed.
*Budget Strategy and Money

2

Page 64

Risk Ref

SRR1.13

10

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

6

3

2

6

Head of Policy
& Resources

6

3

2

6

Managing
Director

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Risk Owner

Risk Ref

Risk

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

4

2

Risk Owner

Plan designed to
appropriately resource the
delivery of the Corporate
Plan.
*Performance management
framework.
*Service planning processes
to ensure Corporate Plan link
to Service Plans.
*Appraisal processes link
personal objectives and
development needs to the
needs of the organisation,
talent development and
personal well being.

Page 65

SRR1.14

Negative
financial
implications due
to inappropriate
delivery and
management of
the Property
Investment
Strategy; and a
risk of political
priorities diluting
commercial
considerations
around hedging

4

4

16

*Property Investment
4
Strategy (including risk
management considerations)
endorsed by Cabinet and
approved by Council.
*Property Investment Board
set up with a defined Terms
of Reference to oversee the
investment of the £80m fund.
*Council approved delegation
of authority to the Council
Solicitor to conclude
documents (in line with senior
officer agreed heads of
terms) to enable completion
of each acquisition.
*Property Investment Board
to receive investment
prospectus and officer
evaluations of potential
property acquisitions; to
make recommendations to
the s151 Officer with regards
to investment; and to oversee

2

8

11

8

Head of Policy
& Resources

Risk Ref

Risk

Original
Original
Original
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

Description

Current
Current
Current
Likeliho
Impact
Score
od

the due diligence and
acquisition process in
accordance with the Property
Investment Strategy.
*Property Investment Board
to monitor fund position
(including cost of borrowing)
and the management of the
estate, with outcomes to be
reported to senior officers
and Members.
*Legal implications ongoing
review to ensure relevant
local authority powers remain
in place to support the
Property Investment Strategy.

Page 66
12

Further Mitigating Action

Timescale

Target
Impact

Target
Target
Likeliho
Score
od

Risk Owner

Agenda Item 11

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

Subject:

Waste, Streetscene and Grounds Maintenance Services
Options Report

Report Of:

Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Environment

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jonathan Lund, Corporate Director

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jonathan.lund@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

17 June 2020

No
Tel: 396276

1. Options Report from WYG
2. Appendix A Confidential Material

EXEMPTIONS
The Report is available for General Release. However, the Appendix to the report
(Appendix A) contains commercially confidential information obtained through discussions
with waste services operating companies.
The public are likely to be excluded from the meeting during consideration of any of the
information contained in the exempt appendix to the report as it contains exempt
information as defined in paragraph (3) of schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972
(as amended).

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To provide an assessment of the options available to the Council as a consequence
of the current contract for the delivery of Waste, Street scene and Grounds
Maintenance Services coming to an end in March 2022 and to recommend the next
steps.

2.0

Recommendations

2.2

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

The Options Report is noted.

(2)

In the period June to mid-September 2020 both Ubico and Amey are invited
to submit proposals for service delivery beyond March 2022.

(3)

A Best Value Review is undertaken to provide a benchmark against which to
assess the proposals identified above in early October.

Page 67

(4)

If neither of the options presents a suitable proposition the Council shall
move to commence a formal procurement exercise to secure an external
service delivery partner having first determined whether to offer a fully or
partially integrated service.

(5)

Delegated authority be given to the Corporate Director (after consultation
with the Cabinet Lead for the Environment) to implement these decisions.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

The Council’s contract for Waste, Street scene and Grounds Maintenance Services
comes to an end in March 2022.

3.2

The Council commissioned WYG to undertake an independent assessment of the
options available to the Council as a consequence of the ending of the Contract.
The brief given to WYG was broad. They were asked to consider, assess and
make recommendations which would:1. Provide commentary on the current state of the waste, recycling, street scene
and grounds maintenance market regionally, nationally and internationally;
2. Provide commentary as to the uncertainties/opportunities of the Government’s
Waste Strategy and other potential policy impacts on the services delivered at
Gloucester;
3. Provide commentary on any Gloucester(shire) specific issues, including the
Waste Partnership, UBICO, aligned waste procurement opportunities with other
authorities.
4. Analyse the Gloucester City Council’s requirement for its services including
examination of the current specification / contract terms and any gaps in GCC
client/service data etc (e.g. GIS).
5. Comment on any changes to the existing contract documentation that the
market might demand, expect or seek;
6. Identify any changes to the existing spec that the City Council might want (e.g.
separation of Grounds Maintenance; any service reductions or enhancements
that might be required; and changes in service including options for collecting
dry recycling on a different basis);
7. Interview and collate the views of the Council’s political groups (Conservative/
Liberal Democrat/ Labour);
8. Undertake a critical assessment of the service delivery options to include:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

In house service delivery (as a whole or in parts)
Undertaking a new procurement to market (as a whole or in parts) of
our service(s) as stand-alone GCC arrangements;
Undertaking a new procurement to market (as a whole or in parts) of
our service(s) in partnership with others;
Delivery through a Teckal organisation (new or UBICO);
Extension of the existing arrangement;
Any other delivery options not covered above.
Page 68

9. Summarise the results of each option in terms of project delivery method, route,
timescale, costs and risk assessment and make recommendations.
3.2

The Options Report is attached at Appendix 1. The Report contains a confidential
appendix which sets out commercially confidential information obtained during
interviews/discussions with waste service operators. If Cabinet wishes to discuss
the information set out in the confidential appendix it will be necessary to exclude
the press and public.

4.0

Social Value Considerations

4.1

Part 6 of the Options Report addresses the City’s approach to community-based
service delivery and the social value derived from that approach.

5.0

Environmental Implications

5.1

Part 4 of the Options Report addresses the environmental implications of the
options available to the Council

6.0

Alternative Options Considered

6.1

The Options Report addresses a range of options as set out in the list at 3.2 (8) a-f
above.

7.0

Reasons for Recommendations

7.1

Part 2 of the Options Report summarises the reasons for the recommendations

8.0

Future Work and Conclusions

8.1

Parts 2.0.3 and 9.2.10 of the Options Report set out the future work arising from this
report.

9.0

Financial Implications

9.1

The Options Report sets out some details of the financial implications attached to
the various options. There are no significant financial implications arising directly
from the content of this report which seeks to recommend a way forward to consider
and assess the merits of the available options. If the recommendations are
accepted there is likely to be some additional consultancy costs associated with a
Best Value Review to provide a benchmark against which to assess the
recommended options. The cost of this consultancy is likely to be around £15,000
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report.)

10.0

Legal Implications

10.1

There are differing legal implications depending on which option the Council
decides to pursue:

Page 69

(a) A contract with Ubico Ltd will enable the Council to benefit from the “Teckal”
exemption and award directly to the company without a procurement exercise.
The Council will have to become a shareholder in Ubico Ltd prior to award.
(b) Clause 6.1 of the present contract with Amey/Enterprise AOL Ltd permits
extension of its term, subject to the matters detailed in the Options report. Also
any extension should be of at least five years duration. A lesser period will
require the agreement of the contractor and formal variation of the contract
terms.
(c) If the Council wishes to procure a new contractor for the services its likely value
will require a full procurement exercise compliant with the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (or such legislation as may replace the regulations following
the United Kingdom’s exit from the European Union).
10.2

As noted in paragraph 12.1 of this report the TUPE regulations will apply in the
event of an award to Ubico Ltd, or a new third-party contractor.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation of this report.)

11.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
11.1

These are set out within the Options Report

12.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA) and Safeguarding:

12.1

There are none arising directly from this report. Future decisions about which
option to take forward will impact on staff engaged in delivering the service and the
TUPE Regulations will apply and a PIA will be undertaken in respect of each option.

13.0

Community Safety Implications

13.1

N/A

14.0

Staffing & Trade Union Implications

14.1

None at this stage see 12 above

Background Documents:

None

Page 70

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS
APPRAISAL
A117443
Gloucester City Council

JUNE 2020

www.wyg.com

Page 71

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Contents
1.0

INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND ........................................................................... 1
1.1

The Services .............................................................................................................. 2

2.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................................... 4

3.0

THE GOVERNMENT’S WASTE STRATEGY ............................................................... 11

4.0

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SPECIFIC ISSUES ................................................................... 16

5.0

SERVICES AT GLOUCESTER .................................................................................. 17

6.0

CONTRACT DOCUMENTATION .............................................................................. 19

7.0

CHANGES TO SPECIFICATION .............................................................................. 21

8.0

INTERVIEWS WITH LOCAL MEMBERS .................................................................... 23

9.0

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS ........................................................................................ 25
9.1

In House Service Delivery (As a Whole or in Parts) ......................................................25

9.2

Undertaking A New Procurement to Market (As A Whole or in Parts) Of Our Service(s) As
Stand-Alone GCC Arrangements .................................................................................27

9.3

Undertaking A New Procurement to Market (As A Whole or In Parts) Of Our Service(s) In
Partnership with Others .............................................................................................30

9.4

Delivery Through a Teckal Organisation (new or UBICO) .............................................30

9.5

Extension of The Existing Arrangement .......................................................................32

www.wyg.com

Page 72

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
1.0

INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND

1.0.1

WYG was engaged by Gloucester City Council (GCC) to undertake an options appraisal in
relation to its streetscene services (waste collection, street cleansing and grounds
maintenance) currently delivered through a contract which expires at the end of March
2022. This contract was originally awarded to Accord in 2007 but following takeovers
(Accord by Enterprise; Enterprise by Amey) is now held by Amey.

1.0.2

Specific tasks to be undertaken by WYG in relation to this project are:
•

To provide commentary on the current state of the waste, recycling, street scene and
grounds maintenance market regionally, nationally and internationally, which is set
out in Appendix A (which includes some confidential information);

•

To provide commentary as to the uncertainties/opportunities of the Government’s
Waste Strategy and other potential policy impacts on the services delivered at
Gloucester, which is set out in Section 3;

•

To provide commentary on any Gloucester(shire) specific issues, including the Waste
Partnership, Ubico, aligned waste procurement opportunities with other authorities
and the potential new depot for Ubico/Cheltenham/Tewkesbury which might also
serve Gloucester: this is set out in Section 4;

•

To analyse the Gloucester CC requirement for its services including examination of
the current specification / contract terms and any gaps in GCC client/service data etc
(e.g. GIS): this is set out in Section 5;

•

To comment on any changes to the existing contract documentation that the market
might demand, expect or seek: this is set out in Section 6;

•

To identify any changes to the existing specification that the City Council might want
(e.g. separation of Grounds Maintenance, any service reductions or enhancements
that might be required and changes in service including options for collecting dry
recycling on a different basis): this is set out in Section 7;

•

To interview and collate the views of the Council’s political groups
(Conservative/Liberal Democrat/Labour), the results of which are set out in Section 8;

www.wyg.com

A117443

1

Page 73

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
•

To undertake a critical assessment of the service delivery options to include:
a.

In house service delivery (as a whole or in parts)

b.

Undertaking a new procurement to market (as a whole or in parts) of our
service(s) as stand-alone GCC arrangements;

c.

Undertaking a new procurement to market (as a whole or in parts) of our
service(s) in partnership with others;

d.

Delivery through a Teckal organisation (new or Ubico);

e.

Extension of the existing arrangement;

f.

Any other delivery options not covered above.

And then to summarise the results of each option in terms of project delivery method,
route, timescale, costs and risk assessment, all of which is set out in Section 9.
1.0.3

We were tasked with producing a final draft report before the end of May and we have met
with this deadline. This final version includes some amendments discussed with the Council
in early June. We would wish to thank all who have participated in making this possible; in
particular, the Officers and Members of Gloucester CC, at this difficult time.

1.0.4

An Executive Summary is included as Section 2.

1.1

The Services

1.1.1

The design of waste collection services is as follows:
•

Food waste collected weekly from caddies: meat, fish, fruit and vegetables (raw and
uncooked), dairy products, bread and cakes, uneaten food from plates, tea and
coffee grounds and nutshells

•

Dry recyclables collected weekly, with collections made using a collection vehicle with
multiple compartments to separate the individual waste streams, which residents are
asked to present as follows:

www.wyg.com

A117443

2

Page 74

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
o

Blue Sack: mixed papers; corrugated cardboard (broken up & flattened to fit
inside the sack) pizza boxes, Mail order packaging, sachet pet food boxers and
washing powder boxes

o

Green recycling box: Glass jars and bottles in box 1; , Plastic bottles, food and
drinks cans, cartons (e.g. tetraPak), aerosols, mixed plastic containers.

•

Residual waste collected fortnightly, predominantly from black wheeled-bins, but with
communal collections for flats: there is a ‘closed lid’ policy.

•
1.1.2

Garden waste collected fortnightly, charged service, using wheeled-bins.

As well as collecting the dry recyclables, Amey is responsible for ensuring these are
separated into commodity streams and selling them for recycling; and this includes
separation of cans and plastic using machinery provided by GCC which is based at the
depot.

1.1.3

Street cleansing services include not only the cleansing of ‘relevant land’ by both mechanical
and manual methods; but also the removal of flyposting and graffiti, weed control on
streets, salting and snow clearance from non-highway areas. Additionally (under the
heading Streetcare Services) Amey repairs non-highway street furniture, provides street
nameplates and cleans public conveniences.

1.1.4

Grounds maintenance services within the Amey contract include not only services for the
City Council but also for Gloucester City Homes; and also the cutting of highway verges, for
which some funding is provided by the County Council (as described in Section 4). Works
covered in the contract include grass cutting, hedge and shrub bed maintenance, the
cleansing of open spaces including leaf clearance, floral displays, arboricultural work and
maintenance of sports pitches including managing the booking of these.

1.1.5

An analysis of the market for these services is set out in Appendix A (which includes some
confidential information).

www.wyg.com

A117443

3

Page 75

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
2.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.0.1

The prime purpose of this report is to undertake an options appraisal in relation to the
various services (waste, recycling, street cleansing and grounds maintenance) delivered by
the Amey contract which expires at the end of March 2022.

2.0.2

The detailed analysis is set out in Section 3 to 8 and in Appendix A; but a summary of our
findings in relation to the options appraisal is set out in the table overleaf:

www.wyg.com

A117443

4

Page 76

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
Option
Deliver in-house

Pros

Cons

Comments

Recommendation

Thought (particularly by

Bringing waste and street

Small in-house team already

Discard this option for waste

opposition leaders) to give

cleansing services in-house

delivering grounds service in

and street cleansing

more direct control

will place demands on GCC

cemeteries plus ranger

infrastructure in respect of

service

Potential synergies with
other grounds maintenance
services

e.g. HR and ICT which will

Consider for grounds
maintenance, if only as a
‘staging post’

prove challenging
Additionally, these services
are highly regulated and GCC
lacks the personnel with

Page 77

required expertise /
qualifications: these people
are in short supply
Could possibly prove the
most expensive option:
labour costs will increase.
Procure a new contract

Would give GCC the option

A stand-alone grounds

Procurement via CPN

Retain as an option: but

to create a robust contract

maintenance contract which

(Competitive Procedure with

essentially this is a

included flexibility for passing

Negotiation) recommended

secondary option should

Ready market available
either for a fully integrated

www.wyg.com

A117443

services to the community is

either the Ubico option /

not obviously attractive to

Amey extension option not

the market

work out well

5

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
Option

Pros

Cons

Comments

contract or for a waste /

Work would be needed to

Contract documents would

A new contract should either

street cleansing contract

refine data for street

need to be completed by end

be a fully integrated

cleansing and (particularly)

of November 2020

arrangement; or a waste /

Client side for this option
already exists

grounds maintenance

Most bidders would find
capital provision for vehicle
purchase helpful (this would
also provide a more
economic solution)

Page 78

Joint contract with others

Recommendation

Could provide synergies /

No other neighbours have

Does not seem a feasible

economies if possible

arrangements which need

option – the same synergies

changing within GCC’s time

/ economies could be

window

realised via the Ubico option

street cleansing arrangement
(latter would require a
separate solution for grounds
maintenance either via Ubico
or in-house)

Discard this option

Cheltenham, Stroud and
Tewkesbury are committed
to Ubico for some time yet
Teckal arrangement

Ubico exists as an existing

Setting up a stand-alone

Ubico was seen as a realistic

Certainly an option to be

Teckal arrangement

Teckal for GCC is seen as a

alternative to the current

pursued, possibly in parallel

providing services to many

challenging exercise and not

contractor recently

with that of an extension

neighbours

of obvious benefit given local
presence of Ubico

www.wyg.com

A117443

6

Ubico would require vehicle

with Amey

purchase / provision to be

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
Option

Pros

Cons

Comments

Recommendation

WYG has independently

Separate arrangements for

via GCC (this should also

Ubico proposals would need

assessed that arrangements

marketing collected dry

provide a more economic

to be received and reviewed

in Cheltenham and

recyclables required

solution)

before the end of

Tewkesbury are value-formoney and (particularly in
Cheltenham) high quality
APSE has assessed that
arrangements at Stroud also
provide value-for-money

Page 79

Working with Ubico could
provide synergies /
economies regarding
vehicles; options for depot
sharing; plus potentially
increased income from e.g.
Commercial Waste

September: so as to allow

Working with a Teckal
requires a different mindset
to working with a contractor:
- A contractor will give a firm
contractual price and will
have to stick with the results,
good or bad

secondary option of a new
contract to be still feasible
Process would be to
benchmark Ubico proposal
(process similar to a Best
Value Review)

- Ubico would give a price,
usually

significantly

lower

than a contract price; but
would charge costs which
could be higher than their
price

(though

experience

GCC would have a seat on

shows total is usually lower

the Ubico board

than for a contract since
Ubico carries low overheads
and has no need to make a
profit)

www.wyg.com

A117443

7

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
Option
Extend current contract

Pros

Cons

Comments

Recommendation

Amey currently performing

History is that Amey have

Legally possible but requires

If this is approved by

well

not always performed well

agreement by both parties

Members as an option,

(GCC and Amey): Amey has

embark on Best Value

formally offered to agree in

Review, to be completed

principle

before October 2020: so as

Seen as least favourable
option by Opposition

to allow receipt of detailed

Members

offer from Amey,
Best Value review also

benchmarking and

required

comparison to Ubico offer;
and enable secondary option

Page 80

of a new contract to be still
feasible
Other

www.wyg.com

A117443

None discovered

8

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
2.0.3

Our recommended option is for the Council to:
•

From now until September to concentrate on two major options: either to extend the
Amey contract or to look to Ubico to provide replacement services:

o

As part of this, the Council would retain a secondary option, should both of the
preceding options fail to provide realistic solutions, of re-tendering a contract,
either for fully integrated services or for waste and street cleansing services;

o

To develop the option for an extension of the current contract, the Council
needs to carry out a formal Best Value Review;

o

To develop the option for a Ubico solution, Ubico have indicated that they can
provide a proposal in time for this to be scrutinised within this timescale
provided GCC can set out a specification of requirements together with TUPE
information from Amey: the process for review would be similar to that of a
Best Value Review;

o

A report setting out the results of these two pieces of work would then be
submitted for consideration in early October.

•

To commence work on measuring / confirming quantities, particularly for grounds
maintenance and street cleansing: a by-product of this may be that charges to GCH
can be reviewed;

•

Should both the Amey extension and the Ubico solution prove undesirable, then the
Council should work to let a new contract: work on contract documentation should
start in October and be completed by the end of November to enable a contract
notice for procurement using CPN to be placed in December;

•

Part of the process immediately above is to consider whether grounds maintenance
should be part of an integrated contract, be part of an arrangement with Ubico or be
taken in-house.

2.0.4

In terms of other matters considered in this appraisal:

www.wyg.com

A117443

9

Page 81

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
•

The waste and recycling services at GCC entirely fit with the Government’s ‘gold
standard’; furthermore, by separating materials at source the GCC service design is
best placed to obtain secure markets for the collected materials.

•

We therefore do not recommend any change in the service design for waste and
recycling.

2.0.5

As stated, the detailed analysis which leads us to these recommendations is set out in the
Sections which follow.

www.wyg.com

A117443

10

Page 82

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
3.0

THE GOVERNMENT’S WASTE STRATEGY

3.0.1

At present there are no statutory local targets much less targets for individual local authorities.
Overall, the Government’s most recent aims which affect the Council are set out in DEFRA’s
Resources and Waste Strategy for England published in December 2018(the Strategy). The
Strategy notes that from rates of 11% in 2000/01, household recycling rates in England have
risen to ca. 45% but have now plateaued. Key targets include eliminating biodegradable waste
being sent to landfill (already achieved at GCC) and for at least 65% of municipal waste by
weight to be recycled by 2035 (GCC current rate ca, 45%). There is a requirement for
ensuring a consistent set of dry recyclable materials is collected from all households and
businesses (consultation to take place on this core set: but it is likely that GCC collects the
vast majority) and to introduce weekly food waste collections (already in place at GCC). There
is to be consultation as to where garden waste collections should be free or charged for (the
latter being the case at GCC).

3.0.2

As far as GCC is concerned, then, the way in which it collects compostable waste and dry
recycling is very much in line with the Strategy: but it is not on target to achieve the desired
performance standard (the Strategy notes difficulties in urban situations).

3.0.3

The Council has to abide by the Waste (England & Wales) Regulations 2011. These enshrine
the principles of the Waste Hierarchy, whereby waste prevention is given the highest priority;
then re-use; then recycling; then recovery; and disposal (landfill and incineration without
energy recovery) which is seen as the worst option. These Waste Regulations were amended
in 2012 including adding Regulation 13 regarding the collection of glass, metal, paper and
plastic for recycling; and the amendment was subsequently the subject of a judicial review.
The requirement of Regulation 13 is that these materials (i.e. glass, metal, paper and plastic
for recycling) should be collected separately: but may be collected on a different basis in
certain circumstances where it can be shown that it is not technically, economically or
environmentally practicable (TEEP).

It is possible that this Regulation will be reviewed in

light of the Strategy.
3.0.4

Waste Regulation 13 is commonly misunderstood. It does not mean that these materials
cannot be co-mingled: but if they are, then a test needs to be carried out to compare the
technical, economic and environmental practicabilities of not collecting them separately in
comparison to the methodology chosen.

In late April 2014 WRAP published the Waste

Regulations Route Map to carry out such tests: and since its publication WYG has carried out
over 30 such tests for local authorities that do not collect these materials separately; and all
have passed this test using this methodology. GCC collects some materials co-mingled and
would need to pass any (revised) test but WYG believes that it would be likely to given the
amount of co-mingling is limited.
www.wyg.com

A117443

11

Page 83

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
3.0.5

As far as recovery is concerned, DEFRA states that the landfill tax is ‘the key driver to divert
waste from landfill to ensure that we meet EU targets under the Landfill Directive’ . For now,
we assume that Landfill Tax will continue and will be increased in line with inflation, but
probably no more, in the future.

3.0.6

DEFRA also notes that the ‘waste producer and the waste holder should manage waste in a

way that guarantees a high level of protection of the environment and human health. In
accordance with the polluter-pays principle, the costs of waste management shall be borne
by the original waste producer or by the current or previous waste holders’.
3.0.7

The Government consulted on a Deposit Return Scheme (DRS) in 2019, as a result of which
Defra stated that it was ‘…minded to introduce a DRS for drinks containers in England and

Wales from 2003.’ However, in the same communication DEFRA stated that ‘The introduction
of a DRS is subject to receiving additional evidence and carrying out further analysis on the
costs and benefits of such a scheme.’ It is worth noting that the Scottish Government had
proposed to introduce a DRS from April 2021 but this has now been deferred to July 2022
and this may lead to a delay in implementation in England.
3.0.8

The consultation included responses from local authorities some of whom noted that the
introduction of a DRS could have an impact on their waste collections, particularly the
convenience for customers and the income they receive from the recycled materials. DEFRA
responded that these factors needed consideration but their general thrust of a DRS for cans,
plastic bottles and glass bottles, and possibly Tetra Pak or similar containers, would continue.

3.0.9

Looking at GCC’s current collection systems, the impact of a successful DRS would be to
reduce the volume of these containers collected at the kerbside: and, depending upon just
how successful the DRS scheme was, this could effect the precise design of the recycling
vehicles. That said, there will still be some households that prefer to use a kerbside collection
service and in any case it is likely that there will still be glass, plastic and metal containers
that will not be covered by the DRS (DEFRA refer to drinks containers to be included in the
DRS, not food containers; and there is a consideration also as to the size of container, though
DEFRA ‘…anticipate this could be drinks containers up to 3-litres in volume…’ but note that
this detail requires consideration).

3.0.10

Overall, then, the waste services as currently delivered at GCC do not conflict at all with the
aims of the Government’s Waste Strategy: this position is in marked contrast to a sizeable
number of councils that do not currently collect food waste (a situation that exists in e.g.
most of Hampshire and East Sussex as well as in many urban situations) or councils that
collect food waste and garden waste mixed as a single stream (as is the case in parts of e.g.
Essex and Hertfordshire).

www.wyg.com

A117443

12

Page 84

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
3.0.11

There is some risk in terms of the precise volumes of dry recyclate which would be collected
following the introduction of a DRS: but there would still be a need to collect at the kerbside
plastic, metal and glass containers which would not be covered by the scheme.

3.0.12

Some months ago, and in connection with another project, WYG consulted with DEFRA
regarding procurements for waste contracts in the period up to 2023, which was the target
date for the introduction of food waste services nationally. They gave the following advice
(which WYG has followed on recent procurement exercises:
•

Where a contract that does not include for waste collections as per the models identified
by DEFRA but goes beyond 2023, then the council will not be required to introduce the
changed services until the contract expires;

•

Where a contract that does not include for waste collections as per the models identified
by DEFRA expires between now and 2023 but can be extended, then the council should
not extend that contract but instead procure a new contract which includes for the
models identified by DEFRA; and

•

Where a contract includes for waste collections as per the model identified by DEFRA
but parts of those services are not yet enacted, then the council will be required to
enact them.

3.0.13

DEFRA was quite clear that these were general principles: and if there were significant issues
(e.g. a very significant cost over and above what might be normally expected from making a
change) then DEFRA was there to help and to provide guidance.

3.0.14

It seems to us that in the case of Gloucester, it has a contract which includes for waste
collections as per the models identified by DEFRA. Therefore, the Council could either extend
the current contract; could procure a new contract to the same system design; or could set
up in-house or Teckal arrangements to the same design. Each of those meet with the Waste
Strategy as currently drafted.

3.0.15

Following on from this, should Government policy change and the Council had procured a
contract which did not (because it could not) anticipate such a change, then changes would
not need to be made until that contract expired: whereas if the services were delivered
through an in-house or Teckal arrangement, then changes to the service would be expected
in line with any required date set by the Government.

3.0.16

In our discussions with Members (see Section 8 below) we were asked about the possibilities
of changes to the current system at GCC for collecting dry recyclables. At present, DEFRA
says that there are three systems for collecting dry recyclables which meet with its approval:

www.wyg.com

A117443

13

Page 85

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
•

A kerbside-sort system (as operated at GCC);

•

A two-stream system with paper and card collected as one stream and all other dry
recyclable items collected co-mingled (as operated at Stroud); and

•
3.0.17

A fully co-mingled collection system (as operated at Tewkesbury).

Interestingly, at present a two-stream collection system with glass as one stream is not an
approved methodology; although some of the highest-performing authorities (e.g. Dorset;
Epping Forest) use this system.

3.0.18

It would be possible to change to one of the alternative approved systems, as described in
3.0.16 and fit with the Strategy: but we would urge caution, particularly in moving to a fully
co-mingled collection system. We know that access to MRFs in this part of the country is
more limited than in e.g. the South East; and we also know that for some authorities the lack
of high quality local MRFs has meant that they are having difficulties in ensuring all recyclate
collected is recycled, partly because of contamination (which GCC’s system largely manages)
and partly because the MRF does not perform as expected. We would urge GCC to remain
with its current collection design.

3.0.19

To expand upon this argument: under GCC’s current collection system for dry recyclables,
most materials are sorted at the kerbside, with the exception of cans and plastic which are
collected mixed. All are taken to GCC’s depot where some of the separate streams (e.g.
paper, card) are baled and ready for market; where glass is immediately ready for market;
and where the co-mingled stream is sorted into its separate streams (steel cans, aluminium
cans and plastics) and baled ready for market. In other words, the recyclables are processed
locally and then sent straight to market. In the case of a co-mingled system (and using
Tewkesbury as an example) the co-mingled recyclate would be tipped at the depot and thence
transferred to a MRF for separation (Tewkesbury’s material goes to Avonmouth).

The

transportation and sorting incurs a cost and the current gate fee is such that it negates the
additional cost and carbon impact of weekly recycling collections at GCC compared to the
fortnightly collections at Tewkesbury. Further, GCC is currently achieving better income rates
than those at TBC (mostly because of the contamination issues noted above) and does not
have the significant problem (in terms of carbon and cost) of dealing with collected
contaminants. Co-mingled collections often work best (in environmental terms and in terms
of cost) where there is low contamination and there is good access to high quality MRFs: and
GCC is not ideally situated with regard to these key factors. Several WRAP studies (e.g. in
Wales) have strongly argued that kerbside-sort systems work better.
3.0.20

In conclusion, we see this matter not so much an argument not to embark upon a new or
different arrangement to current, rather as a need for any documentation relating to the

www.wyg.com

A117443

14

Page 86

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
arrangement (in particular, the payment mechanism and budgeting) to reflect DRS and to be
flexible so that any subsequent changes can be dealt with by means of a variation.
Additionally, in any arrangement there needs to be a break clause in the contract period (or
a shorter than current prime contract period with the option for extension) and we discuss
this matter further in Section 6.

www.wyg.com

A117443

15

Page 87

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
4.0

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SPECIFIC ISSUES

4.0.1

The most significant matter that we believe is relevant to this contract is in regard to the
treatment of dry recyclables.

Whereas in some counties the disposal authority takes

responsibility for the receipt and treatment of dry recyclables (and in some counties the
disposal authority uses their powers of direction to require collection authorities to deliver dry
recyclables to them), in Gloucestershire the collection authorities retain dry recyclables and
are responsible for the costs of treatment and transport plus ensuring that they are recycled.
For this the County Council, as disposal authority and in accordance with the Environmental
Protection Act, pays recycling credits to the collection authorities.
4.0.2

Discussions with the County Council have elucidated that they have no intention to change
the current procedures. Therefore, in its successor arrangements, the Council must arrange
for the management of collected dry recyclate. The County Council will continue to provide
facilities in respect of other wastes (residual waste, food waste, garden waste, street cleansing
arisings etc.); and these will continue to be delivered to their current locations.

4.0.3

Another pertinent matter is that the County Council, as highway authority, makes payment to
the constituent districts and boroughs for cutting highway grass verges. In general terms,
this funding is considered by districts such as Gloucester to be insufficient and they simply
use these funds to top up their grass cutting activities. There is little prospect for the funding
to increase.

www.wyg.com

A117443

16

Page 88

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
5.0

SERVICES AT GLOUCESTER

5.0.1

As noted in Section 3, the design of the waste and recycling services fits with the
Government’s Waste Strategy; and, in WYG’s opinion, is probably the most robust design in
terms of producing high quality recyclables that can be easily marketed at a good price, taking
into account the geographic location of GCC.

The Council Plan includes an ambition to

increase recycling rates: and notes that in recent years there have been ‘…modest but

important increases especially when many councils are finding it hard to sustain increasing
recycling rates’.
5.0.2

As regards street cleansing services, the Council Plan sets out a clear vision to ‘create a vibrant

and prosperous city’ and to ‘maintain a safe and attractive city’. GCC has achieved ‘Purple
Flag’ status: and it is clear to us that achieving high standards for street cleansing is a high
priority for GCC.
5.0.3

For grounds maintenance services, WYG notes the policies of GCC with regard to devolution
of responsibilities for grass cutting ‘…as part of its plan to build strong and resilient

communities’ (report to Overview & Scrutiny, November 2019). The Council Plan includes the
desire to ‘Support communities to take ownership of their local services and assets’.
5.0.4

At the time of writing, grass cutting and allied activities in Podsmead have been delivered by
the local community for two years, meaning that this specific project is still in pilot stage. It
would seem that the costs are marginally higher than they would be under the previous
contracted-out arrangement: but the standards are much higher as is customer satisfaction.
In particular, the new arrangement is better in terms of managing seasonal demands.

5.0.5

Although there are currently no specific plans (in terms of agreed locations and dates for
communities to take over grass cutting and allied responsibilities), it is clear from discussions
with Council officers that there are likely to be further moves in this direction: and we have
seen references / had discussions regarding possible changes for Barton, Matson, Robinswood
and Tredworth in the future.

5.0.6

In terms as to what this means as regards delivery strategy for the future, we understand
that currently Amey’s establishment for grounds maintenance activities is 25 permanent staff
plus six seasonal workers, out of a total establishment of around 175 full-time equivalents
(the number in post currently is a little below establishment; and clearly at this time of
coronavirus we fully understand that this might be the case). We further understand that the
current spend with Amey on grounds maintenance activities, including work for GCH, is ca.£1
million per annum out of a total contract value of ca. £6.3 million per annum.

5.0.7

A variation to move work away from a contract towards community activity would obviously

www.wyg.com

A117443

17

Page 89

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
have more impact on a stand-alone grounds maintenance contract than upon an integrated
contract: not just in terms of the financial viability of the arrangement but potentially in terms
of TUPE implications. We consider that this policy effectively rules out the viability of a standalone grounds maintenance contract: although it does not rule out the viability of an
integrated contract or other solutions such as in-house working or working with Ubico.
5.0.8

Additionally in relation to grounds maintenance services, GCC has achieved Green Flag status
for three sites (Robinswood Hill, Barnwood Arboretum and Saintbridge Balancing Pond &
Allotments) and is working to achieve this in relation to Gloucester Park. The Council is
working to implement the national Playing Pitch Strategy. Clearly, this means that the future
operations need to ensure high standards of service delivery to fit with these achievements.
Therefore, if there is to be an integrated contract there would need to be a check as to the
contractor’s track record in achieving similar or better standards at other locations. As far as
the alternatives are concerned, WYG has observed very high standards achieved by Ubico at
Cheltenham: and potentially this might be the best option to first explore. Ubico’s ‘open book’
approach to costs would fit well with the Council’s policies of community involvement as
described above.

www.wyg.com

A117443

18

Page 90

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
6.0

CONTRACT DOCUMENTATION

6.0.1

There are a good number of changes which we would recommend in terms of a reprocurement for all or part of the services currently covered by the contract. Some of these
considerations are also relevant to e.g. a Teckal arrangement, particularly if involving a third
party such as Ubico.

6.0.2

We would recommend a total review of the contract conditions in the case of a reprocurement: we highlight here just some of the changes that we would recommend from a
technical / commercial perspective. There may be other matters (particularly legal matters
including changes in law since the contract was first procured) that also require attention but
these require a legal input.

6.0.3

The first recommended change is in relation to the contract period, a matter highlighted in
our interviews with Members. Ideally, the contract period will be aligned to the depreciation
period for the major assets of the contract: which for a contract including waste services
might be between eight to ten years: the precise details might need to be agreed as part of
the procurement process to obtain optimum value but relative to some authorities vehicles at
Gloucester would have low annual mileage and they no longer travel to landfill. Different
contract periods might apply for arrangements that did not involve waste services.

6.0.4

Also mentioned in our interviews with Members was the need for an improved performance
management scheme. We are quite clear that this is so. We note the provisions included in
the Variation Deed of March 2020, which include a Payment and Performance Mechanism at
Schedule 4: as to whether this is at an optimum level or whether it would be adequate for a
replacement contract is, at the time of writing, untested.

6.0.5

The current contract includes for security in the form of a Performance Bond. We are clear
in or minds that this provision should stay: except that, first, the Council could consider (but
entirely at its sole discretion) the option of a Parent Company Guarantee; and second that it
will almost certainly not be possible for the Council to determine the wording of such a Bond,
but it could be agreed. As to the value of such a Bond, the current contract is for 15% of the
annual value which is at the higher end of what we would recommend; but we would not
recommend a value lower than 10% of the annual value. A Bond would not be necessary in
the case of a Teckal arrangement.

6.0.6

A key component of a contract which covers waste services is the question of how to deal
with fluctuations in the value of recyclate: and we have noted earlier (in Section 3) that the
volumes of recyclate would vary if a DRS were introduced. We note the provisions included
in the Variation Deed of March 2020: it is difficult to say just now (because of the exceptional
circumstances in which we are in) how this might be covered in future arrangements and

www.wyg.com

A117443

19

Page 91

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
these would need to apply for a contract or a Teckal-type arrangement. Clearly, in the case
of an in-house arrangement, the entire risk would need to be dealt with by the Council.
6.0.7

As far as indexation, excluding recyclate values, is concerned, we believe that indexation
according to a basket, would be appropriate, along the lines of the provisions included in the
Variation Deed of March 2020. Clearly the precise details might need to be refined according
to the scope of the contract and its provisions (e.g. what the arrangements were for financing
vehicles, as noted below). Clearly, in the case of an in-house arrangement, the entire risk
would need to be dealt with by the Council.

6.0.8

We have outlined in Appendix A options for the capital financing of vehicles and we believe
that in the case of a procurement, or indeed e.g. a Teckal arrangement involving Ubico, that
there should be a financial advantage in (at least) exploring options for the Council financing
of vehicle purchase within the contract documentation.

6.0.9

As far as staffing matters are concerned, we note the provisions included in the Variation
Deed of March 2020 in relation to pensions. WYG are not lawyers but we are clear that since
the original contract was drafted the law regarding pensions has changed; and it appears that
the wording in the Variation Deed covers this change. In our interviews with Members, the
idea of ensuring any contractor would give good employment terms to its staff was
mentioned: and WYG has worked with councils that have inserted ‘Living Wage’ requirements
(or, in the case of London authorities, ‘London Living Wage’ requirements) in their contract
conditions.

This is quite clearly a matter of Council choice: although inserting such a

requirement will increase costs, as will the new pension requirements.

www.wyg.com

A117443

20

Page 92

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
7.0

CHANGES TO SPECIFICATION

7.0.1

Should the Council decide to re-tender these services, we would recommend a total review
of the specification in the case of a re-procurement: we highlight here just some of the
changes that we would recommend from a technical / commercial perspective. These relate
to the core services i.e. waste and recycling, street cleansing and grounds maintenance: we
have noted earlier that the specification also includes some more marginal activities which we
have not commented on.

7.0.2

As regards waste and recycling activities, for the most part we feel that a review of the
specification could be done fairly quickly. For the most part, we believe that the specification
for these services should be input based, describing the activities that are required to be
done, setting out quantities and frequencies and the way in which they are to be carried out.
Since the GCC specification was first drafted WYG has been involved in numerous
procurements for waste and recycling services and could provide a choice of templates for
GCC to choose from; following which WYG could work with GCC to develop not only the
specification for these services but also a pricing document / mechanism. Discussions with
Dawn Fearn suggest that a revised specification could be produced in a few weeks.

7.0.3

It would not be appropriate to include certain output measures in a revised specification for
waste and recycling services: for expel, it would not be appropriate to task the contractor
with achieving a certain recycling/composting rate since many of the factors which determine
it are beyond the contractor’s control. However, it would be possible to e.g. define quality
levels for dry recyclables and for compostables; and to include appropriate KPIs for the
contractor to achieve.

7.0.4

We believe the specification for street cleansing activities requires a very thorough review:
and we believe that for a location such as Gloucester the revised specification needs to be a
hybrid, combining both input and output measures. Outputs would be in the form of KPIs
such as those measurements for the former NI195 (describing targets in terms of %
compliance for litter, detritus, graffiti and flyposting and which are currently used) or e.g. in
terms of % capacity in litterbins at any one point in time; inputs could require certain activities
to take place at certain times (typically for cleansing the city centre, either in the morning,
throughout the day or at night time, or for cleansing ‘hotspots’ e.g. outside schools on certain
times / dates. Again, WYG could provide basic templates and the specification itself would
not take long to develop: what would be required is some sort of measurement of street
lengths etc. but WYG believes that it might be possible to use digital data from the highways
authority that is readily available (we have used such data on procurements elsewhere). At
present the street cleansing specification is relatively brief and includes detail that might well
be understood by the client and an incumbent that has been working to such a contract for

www.wyg.com

A117443

21

Page 93

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
many years and possibly through a Teckal arrangement: but if a new contractor were to be
tasked with delivering the service as currently designed, we feel the specification needs to be
tighter.
7.0.5

If the view of the Council is that grounds maintenance should be part of a formal contract,
then it is for these services that the most work would be required in developing a specification.
At present, the specification sets out the areas of responsibility in broad-brush terms but gives
little technical information and there is not much detail regarding quantities. Some work is
required to develop an adequate specification, even if the work was to be subject to either a
Teckal or in-house operation.

7.0.6

Our starting point for a revised specification for grounds maintenance services would be to
categorise the various sites as assets; to identify the features and to measure them; and to
describe the activities that are required for each feature. Thus, there would be a different
specification for e.g. the various sports pitches than for open space areas, with different
outputs for each in terms of e.g. grass length; and, therefore, estimated frequencies for
cutting. Just how far GCC should follow this principle (e.g. should it determine different
species for shrub beds or hedging) would depend upon the relative quantities and the type
of arrangement it wished to enter into. A key advantage of this approach is that it would
clearly identify ownerships (GCH, highways, community etc.). This could be a much more
significant task, and require a longer timescale, than for waste and street cleansing services.

www.wyg.com

A117443

22

Page 94

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
8.0

INTERVIEWS WITH LOCAL MEMBERS

8.0.1

WYG interviewed Councillor Richard Cook and Councillor Jeremy Hilton on 21 April; and
Councillor Kevin Stephens on 22 April, all interviews carried out using Skype.

8.0.2

Councillor Cook (Council leader, Conservative) stated that he had an open mind regarding the
options at this stage and was not wedded to any particular solution: he felt that extending
with Amey was a realistic option as was taking some / all services in-house or having them
delivered by Ubico. He noted that Amey was now performing well and that relationships
between Amey and the Council were much improved: but also noted that grounds
maintenance service standards were not always met; also, that standards for e.g. toilet
cleaning needed definition.

8.0.3

Councillor Cook felt that there was an argument for delaying any reprocurement until or unless
the Government’s Waste Strategy was clear (WYG shared our findings as set out in Section 3
in which we believe the Waste Strategy to be entirely clear at this point in time insofar as the
affect GCC’s service design). WYG also highlighted that the current service design at GCC
was such that it was easier to find good markets for collected materials than e.g. the comingled service at Tewkesbury and that WYG could not, at this stage, recommend GCC
moving to such a system.

8.0.4

Whatever the arrangement, Councillor Cook was not in favour of splitting the services into
more than two separate arrangements: he could see how e.g. grounds maintenance services
might benefit from a different arrangement to waste and street cleansing services. He noted
that having an integrated contract made services more resilient (as evidenced at the present
time). He noted that any arrangement involving Ubico could also provide resilience.

8.0.5

Councillor Cook noted that the current culture and knowledge base among GCC officers did
not really align with the requirements of running an in-house service. As regards a Teckal
arrangement with Ubico, Councillor Cook noted that several councils that had their services
delivered by Ubico found it difficult to deal with the situation whereby Ubico might submit
claims for increased costs (as described in Appendix A): although WYG advised that it has
found that even with those additional payments Ubico has been found to offer an economic
service.

8.0.6

Councillor Hilton (Liberal Democrat) was quite clear on several points.

Whatever future

arrangements were put in place, they should not be for a 15-year period without appropriate
‘break clause’ provisions; and he saw extending the contract with Amey as very much the
worst option. He said that he understood that (even with recent changes) the contract
documentation underpinning the Amey contract was inadequate.

www.wyg.com

A117443

23

Page 95

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
8.0.7

He was also against the concept of an ‘all-in’ contract with the private sector: and believed
that if the option was to continue to contract out these services then a different arrangement
for grounds maintenance might be of value (noting that specific horticultural skills were
required; and opening up the possibility of SMEs carrying out some of the work).

8.0.8

Overall Councillor Hilton was more in favour of in-house working as a first option, with Ubico
a possible option, although he had not studied this option in much detail yet. He said that he
was ‘fed up of organisations that don’t deliver’; and was also concerned about the terms and
conditions of staff employed under contracted-out arrangements, including the level of pay
(WYG advised that some contracts include e.g. Living Wage clauses).

8.0.9

As regards street cleansing services, Councillor Hilton felt that this needed to be more effective
and more responsive to residents’ needs. He said that waste services were now operating at
a good level.

8.0.10

Councillor Stephens (Labour) said that he would go along with the option according to where
the evidence led: but he noted that the history of the Amey contract was that performance
had not always been good; and he therefore was not inclined to continue to work with Amey
(meaning that he almost certainly would not support an extension to the current contract.

8.0.11

He said that he was not committed to an integrated arrangement, in particular he thought
that separate arrangements for grounds maintenance could be attractive to local businesses.

8.0.12

Councillor Stephens’ preferred option was for services to be delivered in-house: but he
acknowledged that this was certainly not a panacea and would not be easy. He said that
officers dealing with these services were excellent but that their experience was under a
contracted-our service and said that different skills and capacities would need to be developed
for in-house operations, which he thought could take 18 months to set up. His second
preference would be to enter into an arrangement with Ubico which he felt would be an easier
transition.

8.0.13

Councillor Stephens did not rule out the option of a new contract: but said that in any new
arrangement there needed to be adequate break-clauses and strong clauses regarding
performance management.

8.0.14

It is worth noting that all three Councillors raised the question which was raised by Councillor
Cook and discussed in 8.0.3 above: moving to a different collection system for dry recyclables.
WYG is clear as to the advantages of the current system at GCC and would not recommend
any change: but it may be that a brief presentation to all Members regarding recycling
methodologies and the Waste Strategy would be of advantage as part of the decision-making
process.

www.wyg.com

A117443

24

Page 96

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
9.0

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS

9.0.1

Here we consider each of the options and summarise each in terms of an overview, taking
into account our findings.

9.1

In House Service Delivery (As a Whole or in Parts)

9.1.1

In many ways we see this as a challenging option for GCC. The services have been
outsourced for some 13 to 14 years at the time of writing: and although the Council has the
skills within its structure to manage a contractor it does not currently have within its
structure all of the skills or the necessary qualified personnel to manage direct service
delivery; and where it does have them it may not have the capacity.

9.1.2

One of the gaps is in relation to the ‘O’ licence which the Council would require in the case
of an in-house service or a stand-alone Teckal organisation. Waste services and (probably)
street cleansing services would require the use of LGV vehicles: and therefore, the Council
would require an individual with a CPC qualification for such a licence.

9.1.3

If the Council chose to bring services in-house or deliver through its own Teckal
arrangement, then some up-front investment would be required in terms of recruiting a
suitably qualified individual some six months before start date; and for that individual to
then apply for the ‘O’ licence. A licence could not be granted without a named responsible
individual holding a CPC; and, crucially, the application including details of the named
employee (whom would need to be employed by the organisation that would operate the
fleet) would need to be made well in advance of service start. There would be an obvious
up-front cost for this.

9.1.4

Similarly, the Council would, should it choose to deliver services in-house, require
investment in terms of Health & Safety before the new arrangement started. Whilst it is
true that a contracted-out arrangement would require some involvement by the Council in
managing Health & Safety (particularly for waste services, which record the second-highest
levels per employee of any industry for both accidents and deaths) this would be at a
different level entirely should the Council deliver services in-house. A full set of risk
assessments would need to be carried out and training given before any activities could be
carried out. This would incur a significant up-front cost: some years ago, WYG worked with
Thanet DC who had decided to take waste collection and street cleansing back in-house but
had retained a DSO for grounds maintenance. Looking at the time we spent on making and
writing up risk assessments, we estimate that a one-off cost of ca. £75,000 would need to

www.wyg.com

A117443

25

Page 97

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
be invested before service start date were the services to be taken in-house; and in
addition there would be a further on-going costs each year.
9.1.5

For waste activities the Council would also need to obtain a waste carrier’s licence. We are,
of course, entirely aware that other councils that do deliver these services in-house have
met these various challenges in terms of compliance: but they are, in the main, building
onto an infrastructure that already exists. Were GCC to decide to take these services inhouse it would be necessary to recruit staff with a new skills set well in advance of the start
date for the new arrangement: and since these skills are in relatively short supply, the cost
could be significant, certainly at least at the level of the range of costs we estimate for
procuring a new contract (see 10.2.12), and possibly more. Having invested the costs,
there remains a (small) risk of potential non-compliance.

9.1.6

Finally, there is a distinct possibility of increased on-going costs for staff within the in-house
model. At present Amey would argue that they are paying what they believe to be market
rates for the operational staff: and since, by and large, they are able to recruit sufficient
staff to deliver the services currently, that argument would seem to hold water. Should
GCC take the services in-house then initially the staff would transfer with their current terms
and conditions under TUPE: but at some point they would need to be transferred to GCC
terms and conditions to fit with the ‘equal pay for work of equal value’ principle.

9.1.7

GCC already employs some manual workers in-house and the grounds maintenance workers
are employed at grade B, which is in the range of £18,426 to £18,795 per annum for a 37hour week.

9.1.8

Information provided by Amey shows that, even after a lengthy period of operating the
contract for GCC, they do not have an entirely consistent approach to employment. In
particular, some of the staff who were originally employed by GCC (16 of 164 current Amey
employees) still retain what are said to be ‘GCC conditions’ in relation to pay increases.
Some 31 employees (of 164) are members of the Gloucestershire LGPS. The working week
for the staff varies from 37 hours (64 employees) to 40+ hours (five employees) whilst the
balance (excluding two part-timers) have a working week of between 37.5 and 39 hours.

9.1.9

As to the rates of pay stated in the information provided by Amey: excluding the two parttimers, 65 staff are paid below the lowest level of the GCC grounds maintenance staff
(£18,426 as stated in 10.1.7 above): and a cursory examination of their job titles suggests
that to maintain parity / fair treatment with GCC staff, these would be entitled to an
increase in pay.

www.wyg.com

A117443

26

Page 98

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL

9.1.10

Of those receiving pay above the highest level of the GCC grounds maintenance staff
(£18,795), from a cursory examination of their job titles they would probably be evaluated
at a grade higher and thus would probably retain their current pay levels. However, there is
the issue of those working more than 37 hours per week that might need to be addressed;
and it is possible that GCC’s job evaluation scheme might place some posts (e.g. LGV
drivers) at a higher grade than their current rate of pay.

9.1.11

The cost of increasing the pay levels as noted in 9.1.9 above is ca. £20,000 per annum, a
low level of additional cost: however, more significantly, if the staff were transferred inhouse, then they would all be entitled to join the LGPS; and since we are advised that the
current employer’s contribution rate is 17.5%, our assessment is that this would incur
additional costs of ca. £317,000 per annum over and above what the current costs are.

9.1.12

Including an allowance for addressing the 37-hour week, then, we might see the cost of
labour increase by between £350,000 and £400,000 per annum; and this might be an
under-estimate should GCC’s job evaluation scheme re-grade some posts.

9.1.13

Whilst this figure is somewhat lower than we might have feared, it is at a level well in
excess of what we would assess Amey’s (or any other contractor’s) profit level from such a
contract. Taking into account both this increase in annual costs and the one-off costs
necessary to set up an in-house operation, we conclude that this is not likely to be the
cheapest option; and, of course, under this option the Council has no risk mitigation, it
handles all of the risk.

9.1.14

In our view this does not seem to be the optimum solution, particularly for waste and street
cleansing services; although if one considers grounds maintenance services there is the
possibility of synergies / economies with the current in-house services.

9.2

Undertaking A New Procurement to Market (As A Whole or in Parts)
Of Our Service(s) As Stand-Alone GCC Arrangements

9.2.1

We see this option as entirely feasible. The current contract runs until the end of March
2022 and there is certainly adequate time to procure a new contract to commence from that
date should that be the chosen option.

9.2.2

In terms of a procurement, one of the key decisions would be just what services would be
included and whether there is to be a division by Lots. If there is to be division by Lots,
then this could necessitate or argue for a Competitive Dialogue (CD) process: but if there

www.wyg.com

A117443

27

Page 99

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
were to be no such division then either a mini-CD process (with two stages) or the new CPN
might be appropriate.
9.2.3

We do not consider either the Restricted or Open Procedures to be appropriate at all for
waste services because of the sensitivity around recyclate values both now and in the future
and the likelihood of the Council being able to draft documentation that industry will agree
to without discussion or negotiation is close to zero.

9.2.4

We set out here, first, a potential timetable for a three-stage CD process, in which we allow
for a six-month period for mobilisation from contract award until service commencement:

9.2.5

•

Development of contract documentation

To June 2020

•

Placing of contract notice

June / July 2020

•

Shortlisting from questionnaires

August 2020

•

Inviting Outline Solutions tenders

September 2020

•

Receiving Outline Solutions tenders

November 2020

•

Evaluating Outline Solutions tenders

December 2020

•

Inviting Detailed Solutions tenders

January / February 2021

•

Receiving Detailed Solutions tenders

March 2021

•

Evaluating Detailed Solutions tenders

April / May 2021

•

Final dialogue

June / July 2021

•

Closing of dialogue, inviting final tenders

Late July 2021

•

Evaluating final tenders

August / September 2021

•

Contract award

End of September 2021

Clearly, it would be a very tight timetable if a three-stage CD procedure was chosen since
there is only a short time to develop contract documentation and we have noted, in
Sections 5 and 6 that much work is needed. However, a shortened two-stage procedure
(involving placing a Contract Notice in autumn 2020) seems entirely achievable.

9.2.6

Second, we set out some notes regarding the CPN process together with a potential
timetable for a CPN process.

9.2.7

Under this procedure, contract documents are published with the Contract Notice as with all
other procedures. Tenders are invited whereby the participants are required to submit
some variant scenarios; and may choose to submit others. In this particular case, we might
expect tenderers to offer different prices for different contract periods (e.g. ranging from an
initial seven to 10 years); to clarify the discount they would give if the Council provided the

www.wyg.com

A117443

28

Page 100

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
capital, and clarifying the amount of capital required; to show discounts for multi-Lot
awards; and to comment upon some specific terms and conditions.
9.2.8

Tenders are then evaluated. Under the CPN it should always be possible to award the
contract without negotiation: and if the same tenderer offers the best tender in any
scenario with no amendments required to the terms and conditions then that would indeed
be possible. Where this is not the case then the Council would invite the highest scoring
tenderers (using set criteria to determine how many etc.) to separate negotiation meetings,
which might include e.g. a demonstration of the contractor’s ICT system. Following these
meetings, the Council would fine-tune its requirements and invite those who have
participated in the negotiations to re-tender: and then re-evaluate the submissions. The
fine-tuned requirements would need to be such so that there is a clear winner.

9.2.9

By these means the Council can evaluate variants and award the contract with low risk
attached to the process. This would not be possible using Restricted or Open Procedures:
and we believe that CD could be seen as being too cumbersome and time-consuming (and
expensive), unless the contract was far-reaching.

9.2.10

9.2.11

The key stages in a CPN process might be as follows:
•

Development of contract documentation

To December 2020

•

Placing of contract notice

December 2020

•

Shortlisting from questionnaires

January 2021

•

Inviting tenderers

February 2021

•

Receiving initial tenderers

March / April 2021

•

Evaluating initial tenders

April / May 2021

•

Negotiations

June / July 2021

•

Inviting final tenders

July 2021

•

Evaluating final tenders

August / September 2021

•

Contract award

End of September 2021

We appreciate that these timescales might have to be expanded a little to fit in with
reporting processes: but the degree of expansion should not be too long (apart from,
possibly, those associated with final contract award) given that dates for meetings etc.
might be able to be set around these drafts. The key thing is that, at the most pessimistic,
there are around six months for decisions to be made and for documents to be drafted: and
if the number of options to be tested can be reduced then the more time is available for
these processes.

www.wyg.com

A117443

29

Page 101

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL

9.2.12

There would, of course, be costs in relation to a re-procurement: as to the level of these,
much would depend upon what specialist advice would be required from external sources
(legal, procurement, technical, financial) but a cost of between £100,000 and £200,000
might be a reasonable range: and although this range should cover all aspects of a
procurement for waste and street cleansing services, there would be the ‘over and above’
costs of a re-measurement for grounds maintenance.

9.2.13

At this stage, we see this option as a ‘fall-back’ option: the timetable makes it clear that a
contract notice would not need to be published until December and this enables other
options to be tested in the meantime and without committing to the cost of a fresh
procurement.

9.3

Undertaking A New Procurement to Market (As A Whole or In
Parts) Of Our Service(s) In Partnership with Others

9.3.1

Working in partnership with other councils means in practice working with geographic
neighbours, which for GCC are the councils at Stroud and Tewkesbury. Both of these
councils have their services delivered by Ubico. The arrangements at Stroud have been
independently reviewed recently and stated as being good value-for-money (see 3.1.26)
whilst at Tewkesbury recent service reviews indicate that they are likely to continue to have
their services delivered by Ubico for some considerable time.

9.3.2

It is worth noting that, elsewhere in Gloucestershire, Cotswold also have services delivered
by Ubico (and Cotswold’s previous contractor SUEZ found service delivery there to be
difficult and uneconomic); Cheltenham has all services delivered by Ubico and, following a
service review, has committed to continuing with this delivery model for some years; whilst
Forest of Dean extended their waste contract with Biffa until, July 2024 with all other
services being delivered by Ubico.

9.3.3

A joint procurement with other partners seems an unlikely option: we discuss the option of
GCC working with Ubico in 9.4 below.

9.4

Delivery Through a Teckal Organisation (new or UBICO)

9.4.1

First of all, we should say that, given the local presence of Ubico and the testimony that
exists as to the good value they provide elsewhere, it is not at all obvious why GCC should
either seek to set up its own Teckal company or to engage with another partner, such as
Norse. With regard to the first, there would be costs in setting up the Teckal and there is
no track record to support such a move; and with regard to the second, engaging with a

www.wyg.com

A117443

30

Page 102

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
party other than Ubico would mean a steeper ‘learning curve’ with no opportunities for local
synergies.
9.4.2

About a year ago, GCC was seriously considering entering into an arrangement with Ubico
because at the time there were various problems with the Amey contract. Happily, these
problems are now resolved: but the option of a future arrangement with Ubico seems to us,
in principle, to be entirely realistic.

9.4.3

That is not to say that a decision to definitely move in that direction should be taken now.
Rather, we believe that GCC should ask Ubico to make a proposal for service delivery and
then evaluate that proposal: first, against any other option that is under consideration; and
second, against an estimate as to what a contracted-out solution might cost.

9.4.4

WYG has enquired as to how Ubico could respond and we can report that Ubico could
provide a proposal for around mid-September. For them to do this they would require a
specification: but unlike the situation in a formal procurement, the specification could be
produced in piecemeal fashion e.g. we believe a waste specification could be produced
within a week or so for Ubico to work on, with other details to follow (probably street
cleansing a week or two later; and grounds maintenance etc. following after).

9.4.5

Ubico would naturally require a TUPE list early on; and to make the most of this option we
would recommend a series of meetings during the summer months so that both sides are
entirely clear as to the details of the proposal: for example, the length of the arrangement
and the details for vehicle funding would be important matters to discuss.

9.4.6

As part of the Ubico proposal they would give details as to the governance arrangements
for GCC to consider: and the likelihood is that there would be a ‘joining fee’ as has been the
case for other Ubico partners (which we are sure would be lower than the cost of a
procurement and should be reflected in lower on-going costs).

9.4.7

For Ubico to participate in this exercise would require Ubico board approval: from our
discussions we understand that the chair has agreed in principle. One of the matters that
might concern the board is that (in effect) they would be committing Ubico resources (and
thereby monies) for an activity that might not yield positive results for the existing partners.

9.4.8

The process of evaluating Ubico’s proposal would need to consider the fact that, by the
nature of Teckal working, we would expect Ubico’s proposed costs to be lower than a

www.wyg.com

A117443

31

Page 103

creative minds safe hands

STREETSCENE SERVICES – OPTIONS APPRAISAL
private sector equivalent bid (since the latter is largely fixed, whereas Ubico could charge
for any exceptional unforeseen costs).

9.5

Extension of The Existing Arrangement

9.5.1

GCC officers approached their legal advisers concerning this option. The advice is that this
indeed an option and an extension, by mutual agreement with the contractor (Amey), is
possible for a period not exceeding five years i.e. up to the end of March 2027; but as part
of the process for agreeing an extension, a Best Value Review is required. Although this
report covers some of the elements of a Best Value Review, it probably does not meet the
full requirements of such a Review.

9.5.2

GCC officers have approached Amey to ascertain their willingness to agree such an
extension and have received confirmation that Amey is indeed willing to pursue this option.

9.5.3

WYG should emphasise at this stage that we are not lawyers: but we know that there is a
limit as to how much the current contract (including variations) may be further varied and
still be regarded as an extension.

9.5.4

As with the Ubico option. We believe GCC should seek a detailed extension proposal from
Amey by mid-September at the latest; and WYG could evaluate it against any other option
that is under consideration; and against an estimate as to what a contracted-out solution
might cost, which would be part of the Best Value Review. This could be for a period of up
to five years.

www.wyg.com

A117443

32

Page 104

creative minds safe hands

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 117

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 125

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 127

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 137

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 141

This page is intentionally left blank

